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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) is a wholly owned-subsidiary
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong). Previously known as
Banco Weng Hang, S.A., OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) was
established in 1941 and has about 500 employees.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong), the former Wing Hang
Bank, Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Bank on 15
October 2014. OCBC Bank is the second largest financial services group
in Southeast Asia by assets with an Aa1 rating from Moody’s. Recognised
for its financial strength and stability, OCBC Bank is consistently ranked
among the World’s Top 50 Safest Banks by Global Finance and has been
named Best Managed Bank in Singapore and the Asia Pacific by The Asian
Banker. OCBC Bank is the longest established Singapore bank with an
international presence of over 610 branches and representative offices
in 18 countries and regions. OCBC Bank'’s market-leading subsidiaries
include Great Eastern Holdings, the oldest and most established life
insurance group in Singapore and Malaysia; Lion Global Investors, one of
the largest private sector asset management companies in Southeast Asia;
and Bank of Singapore, which operates on a unique open-architecture
product platform to source for the best-in-class products to meet its
clients’ goals.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong) together with its subsidiaries
and affiliated companies, offers a comprehensive range of commercial
banking products and services and other financial services such as
consumer financing, share brokerage and insurance, among others. It has
a network of 100 branches and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and China,
including the 12 branches operated by OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
(Macau).

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau), as part of the OCBC group of
companies, offers customers an augmented banking network, enhanced
market access and an expanded range of products and services to meet
their personal and business financial needs.
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2016 Results in Brief

LASBPTEE T T 51 (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
#mn Crd)
Increase/
(Decrease)
2EEH FOR THE YEAR 2016 2015 %
MR 0 18 0 F Profit after taxation 365,492 377,082 -3.1%
%2 Dividends 300,000 - 100.0%
RELTE AT YEAR END 2016 2015 %
[ R fe e 4B 5B Total equity 3,518,244 3,409,479 3.2%
EIFR Total deposits 27,789,727 28,783,824 -3.5%
BEFER Advances to customers 21,102,568 22,265,189 -5.2%
BEE Total assets 31,892,612 32,805,878 -2.8%
[ RATIO % %
A 7R B b 2R Cost to income ratio 45.9 43.4
T & E R R Return on average assets 1.1 1.1
FHRRRE & B E Return on average shareholders' funds 10.2 11.6
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Five Year Financial Summary

F TR MOP thousand 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
RERE Shareholders' fund 2,122,248 2,572,192 3,077,641 3,409,479 3,518,244
@R Total deposits 23,267,179 26,854,154 30,286,129 28,783,824 27,789,727
BEER Advances to customers 16,269,604 19,501,200 21,950,541 22,265,189 21,102,568
BEE Total assets 25,994,279 31,471,040 35,587,868 32,805,878 31,892,612
BERA Operating income 526,039 638,308 732,503 777,009 766,040
EEXH Operating expenses (241,789) (285,023) (324,290) (336,875) (351,681)
B 15 18 Va5 A Profit after taxation 271,648 356,296 332,500 377,082 365,492
s Dividends (84,000) (48,000) (120,000) - (300,000)
L= Ratio 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
BfFt % Loan to deposit ratio 69.9 72.6 72.5 77.4 76.0
BEARTE B E* Capital adequacy ratio * 12.1 12.8 12.5 13.7 15.2
FAS BRI B R Cost to income ratio 46.0 44.7 443 43.4 45.9
FHEER K Return on average assets 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.1
FHRREESBIRE  Return on average

shareholders' funds 13.7 15.2 11.8 11.6 10.2

* RRMERMEBERBZ EXRMmAH
Calculated in accordance with the requirements set out by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau.

4 EB/XTHRITROERADT « 2016FFH
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Net Profit / Return on Average Shareholders’ Fund
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Bank Information
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Shareholders
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Mr NA Wu Beng

Directors

Ms KNG Hwee Tin

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen
Mr CHAN Han Wo

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Supervisory Council
Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

General Meeting Committee
Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley
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Chairman’s Statement
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4 Mr. NA Wu Beng

Chairman

After a very difficult 2015 when Macau’s GDP contracted by 21.5 percent
in real terms, Macau's economy experienced yet another challenging year
in 2016. The downward trend in gaming revenue continued well into the
third quarter of the year. Real GDP in Macau contracted by 2.1 percent,
despite a modest recovery seen in the second half of the year. During this
difficult economic environment, the Bank has achieved satisfactory results.
Even though loan demand was subdued, especially in the corporate sector,
the Bank’s net interest margin improved as a result of a proactive and
effective asset and liability management strategy. The loan-to-deposit
ratio was maintained at a healthy level of 76.0 percent. With a prudent
underwriting policy and proactive risk management measures to avoid
high risk sectors, the Bank’s asset quality improved during the economic
downturn. As of year-end of 2016, the ratio of impaired loans to total
loans was at a historical and industry leading low level of 0.05 percent.

While fee income was weighted down by the drop in brokerage fees
as a result of lower market turnover, the Bank recorded satisfactory
results in other fee income businesses. One of the growth areas is wealth
management as the Bank capitalized on the expanded product range
and service expertise of the OCBC Group in providing top-notch wealth
management and insurance products to our customers.

Amid the challenging operating environment, the Bank's net profit
declined by merely 3.1 percent to MOP365 million as compared to
MOP377 million in 2015. Shareholders’ funds amounted to MOP3,518
million, an increase of 3.2 percent as compared to 2015, and return on
average shareholders’ funds was 10.2 percent. The capital adequacy ratio
of the Bank at the end of 2016 was maintained at a healthy ratio of 15.2
percent.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 7
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking ahead, the operating environment will continue to be
challenging. We are closely monitoring our loan portfolio for negative
effects from the economic downturn which usually takes time to fully
reflect on loan quality. Nevertheless, our prudent approach to extend
credit means that our existing portfolio is fundamentally strong. This will
prepare us well in adopting a more proactive business strategy during the
recovery phase of the economic cycle. With the continued support from
our customers, the dedication of our colleagues, and strong backing from
the OCBC Group we are confident of maintaining a competitive franchise
in the market.

Finally, I would like to thank our customers for their confidence and
unwavering support. | would like to also thank our colleagues for
upholding a high standard of customer service and for delivering a good
financial performance in 2016.

NA Wu Beng
Chairman

15 March 2017
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Report of the Supervisory Council

RIETT BEBER B¥EBNIEZRTE XY The balance sheet and income statement of the Bank (the “financial
BRRBASRIBITADI MR SIB B X EEIEE  statements”) are prepared in accordance with Macau banking laws and
BEMESEZTE - (RAEER - %53  audited by KPMG. In the opinion of the Supervisory Council, the financial
REUBLRNBITR -_Z—RFE+-_A=1+—H statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank
CHERAFWEMRRIREEZAILZ2F%  as at 31 December 2016, and of the profit for the year then ended.

e

EFeTE President of Supervisory Council
EEH EM LO Wai Ching Maggie
201743A15H 15 March 2017

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 9
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited,
Hong Kong (“OWH"), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC"”). OWH has
complied with Supervisory Policy Manual on Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. The Bank has also applied the internal control
objectives, principles and components as set out in “The Internal Control
Guidelines for the Authorised Credit Institutions” issued by the Monetary
Authority of Macau throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Board of Directors

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a stable composition that
provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making and
implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director
possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank.
The Board also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and
other expertise necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During
the year, all directors of the Bank received regular briefings on economic
updates, the Bank’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters as well as new rules and regulations and changes to
rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Members of the Board are as follows:.

Mr NA Wu Beng (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr LEE Tak Lim (Director & General Manager)

Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Ms KNG Hwee Tin (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Frank John WANG (Non-Executive Director)

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen (Non-Executive Director)

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley (Non-Executive Director)

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Non-Executive Director)

The following directors are senior executives of OWH.

Mr NA Wu Beng, Chief Executive, Mr Frank John WANG, Deputy Chief
Executive, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael, Group Executive, Mr WONG Chun
Kau Stephen, Senior Deputy General Manager and Mr YUEN Sui Chi
Stanley, Chief Financial Officer.

All Directors have no relationship with each other.

During the year, six board meetings were held. The 2016 Annual General
Meeting will be held on 29 March 2017.
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Supervisory Council

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no change in the
composition of the Supervisory Council. The Supervisory Council satisfies
the requirement stipulated in the Macau Commercial Code that one of its
members is a Registered Auditor in Macau.

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference which are
regularly reviewed (the latest version was approved by the Shareholders’
Annual General Meeting on 19 March, 2013). Its principal functions are
to independently review and monitor the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Bank; oversee the audit process; and perform all other duties and
obligations mentioned in the law and in the articles of association of the
Bank. The Supervisory Council reviews the audit coverage and approves
the internal audit plan, reviews the work, findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors. The Supervisory Council also discusses issues
raised by the external auditors and the regulators, and ensures that
recommendations are properly implemented.

Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie (President)
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius (Supervisor)
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah Stephen (Supervisor)

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie is the Chief Internal Auditor, and Mr. LEUNG
Chiu Wah Stephen is Chief Operating Officer of OWH. Mr. TSE Hau Yin
Aloysius is a Registered Auditor in Macau, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"”) and a former president and
member of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin Aloysius is an Independent Non-Executive and Chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee of OWH.

Four meetings were held in 2016.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 11
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Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be
the preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on
equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank's strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational
aspects of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to
further improve the competitiveness of the Bank.

Remuneration Committee

The Bank follows the principle of the remuneration policy of OWH. The
Board has mandated a committee comprising Mr NA Wu Beng, Mr Frank
John WANG, and Ms KNG Hwee Tin to determine the Bank’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Executive Directors and senior management of
the Bank, by reference to corporate goals and objectives as determined
by the Board from time to time. In determining the remuneration policy,
the Committee takes into account the Bank’s business objectives, human
resources strategy, short-term and long-term performance, business and
economic conditions, and market practices in order to retain staff with
relevant expertise for the Bank's long-term success.

The mandate also empowers the Committee to appoint members of senior
management and recommend to the Shareholders the appointment of
Directors.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-
to-day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of
reference in order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly
and to report back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and
recommendations. Information on these committees is set out below:

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve
all major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations,
management and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and
authorities necessary for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal
banking and related activities.
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Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Group Executive of OWH;

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;
— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division; and

- Head of Self-Service Banking Division.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of
the Bank. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the Bank's credit risk management framework. It also participates in
evaluating large credit applications and making credit decisions.

Members of the Credit Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager,

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division; and

—  Head of Credit and Risk Management Department.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management
framework relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading,
funding and liquidity risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy
and guidelines to the Board for approval.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as
follows:

—  General Manager;

— Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Treasury Department; and

- Head of Financial Management Department.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 13
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank’s activities.
While each of these risks is managed by the division/department with
specialized knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management
Committee is assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management
of these risks. The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that each
level of risks is within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk
management process meets the standards required by the AMCM.

Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

— General Manager;

— Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Self-Service Banking Division;

— Head of Credit and Risk Management Department;
— Head of Legal and Compliance Department;

— Head of Financial Management Department; and
—  Head of Information Technology Department.

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Committee
The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") and Counter-Terrorist Financing
("CFT") Committee is formed to oversee the functioning and effectiveness
of AML/CFT control measures so that all AML/CFT cases or issues are
properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It meets regularly
to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks arising from
AML/AFT matters and ensures proper control measures are in place to
meet the AML/CFT statutory and regulatory requirements.

Members of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Branch Operation & Planning Department;
— Head of Human Resources Department;

— Head of Central Control Department;

— Head of Legal and Compliance Department; and
— Head of Internal Audit Department.
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Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; maintain proper accounting records; and ensure the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on
major risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk
control limits are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
risks arising under their areas of responsibility and the management
of such risks in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies
and procedures. The relevant risk management reports are submitted
to the Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board for
monitoring the respective risks.

More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in note 25 to
the financial statements.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank’s internal control
framework. It monitors the effectiveness of internal control procedures
and compliance with policies and standards across all business and
operational units. Senior management is required to provide the internal
audit function with written confirmation that it has acted fully on all
recommendations made by external auditors and regulatory authorities.
The internal audit function also advises senior management on operational
efficiency and other risk management issues. The work of the internal
audit function focuses on areas of greatest risk to the Bank as determined
by risk assessment. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the General
Manager and President of the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are
submitted to the Board and Audit Committee of OWH for review.

Macau, 15 March 2017
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As a well-established financial institution with a long history in Macau, we
are reliable and trustworthy to our community. We have a responsibility to
contribute to the development of our community and employees. Hence,
corporate social responsibility (“CSR") is a core aspect of our business and
we have a strong sense of commitment in fulfilling this responsibility and
ensuring that it is part of our everyday operation.

It is in our interest to act upon our goals of CSR. We realize that the
more harmonious the place in which we run our business, the greater the
chance of success. Therefore, CSR has always been an integral part of
the Bank’s corporate strategy. It is our belief that a responsible business
creates a win-win situation for the Bank, its shareholders, customers,
employees, business partners, and the society at large.

At OCBC Wing Hang Limited (Macau), corporate social responsibility
represents our commitment to promote business activities that bring
economic, social and environmental benefits to the society. We attain
the targets by actively fulfilling our governance, environmental and
community responsibilities.

EEFEKTRITZLEHEER
CSR in OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau)

[ EREME \ /

—r

HEEME \

Governance Responsibility

- PEMESREEER
CSR Management

- RRRERE
Risk Management

- BXRRT

Business Ethics
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Environmental Responsibility

- BERAEES
Green Office Campaign

- BEIFRREY
Continual Support of
Environmental Activities

- HEBEP MEEESRFIRR

Eco-Friendly Customers and
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Community Responsibility

- PEge
Equal Opportunity

- BIZERA
Employee Enrichment

- HERTm&RY
Community Services
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Fulfilling CSR has always been an integral part of the Bank’s corporate strategy

Governance Responsibility
Good governance enables us to manage risk and earn the trust of
customers and stakeholders.

CSR Management

To plan and manage our CSR activities in a systematic and coherent
manner, we have a CSR Committee to develop strategies, policies and
guidelines on CSR. The Committee also approves, supervises and monitors
the implementation of all CSR initiatives. Our monitoring and review
system on the CSR framework is on-going so that we continuously
improve our CSR strategies.

A CSR Working Team and various support teams working under the
direction of the CSR Committee are responsible for the promotion,
support and organization of CSR activities.

In an ever-changing business environment, the CSR Committee monitors
the Bank’s corporate governance practices to ensure all our activities
are conducted with professionalism, high ethical standards, integrity
and honesty. Compliance, which governs our daily operations, is every
colleague’s responsibility. We organize on-going compliance training to
uphold the Bank’s standard of business practices and services.

Risk Management

Corporate governance in the Bank includes a risk management framework
to manage economic and social risk, to ensure business continuity and to
serve the interests of our stakeholders.

Business Ethics

We strongly believe that providing quality services with high ethical
standards and practices to customers is a key element to maintain good
relationship with our customers. This is essential to sustain growth in our
business, and is definitely in the interest of our shareholders.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 17
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Environmental Responsibility

Being environmentally responsible not only protects the environment
when we use our natural resources more efficiently, it also helps us build
a less polluting environment and improve our quality of life.

Green Office Campaign

As a socially responsible corporation, we actively work towards a green
future. “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” is the theme of the Bank’s Green
Office Campaign. With a firm belief that every bit of effort helps, all staff
are encouraged to protect the environment.

Continual Support of Environmental Activities

We showed our support to various environmental protection activities,
like the "Earth Hour” organized by WWF, the "Energy Conservation
Week"” organized by the Macau SAR Government and assist the
Macau Environmental Protection Bureau to send out the message of
environmental protection via our network.

In 2016, we sponsored the “Eco Macau Trail Hiker” event. This event
aimed to promote the green side of Macau, teamwork, environmental
awareness and contributions to the community. Participants enjoyed
the physical fitness in Macau’s natural environment during the race,
enhancing their awareness on environmental protection and developing a
healthy life. Our racing team and volunteers had also participated in this
meaningful event.

Our Environmental Protection Committee continuously reviews and
promotes various activities to educate and enhance the awareness of
environmental lifestyle of our employees.

Eco-Friendly Customers and Suppliers

The Bank constantly educated our customers to make use of our electronic
banking services, including e-statement to reduce paper usage. Some
of our corporate customers and major suppliers have also installed
environmental protection facilities and adopted environmental friendly
practices in their daily operation.

EHERRRERPINER

We organized regular recreational and outdoor activities
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Community Responsibility

We aspire to be the employer of choice for desired talents as our strong
performance is driven by employees with passion and commitment. We
also believe our business can only succeed if the society is prospering.
Hence, it is our responsibility to further the development of our employees
and support the community.

Equal Opportunity

The bank ensures equal opportunity in employment. We encourage
breaking unnecessary barriers and building a harmonious working
environment for all staff. The Bank will continue to support equal
opportunity in our employment practice.

Employee Enrichment

Our staff is our greatest asset. Nurturing out staff and helping them to
relieve their stress can increase their efficiency and performance at work.
We realize that consistent and excellent staff performance, as well as
strong commitment are important to the Bank's success.

We treasure our employees by providing a safe and quality-working
environment as well as suitable and competitive remuneration to meet
their needs.

Training and Further Studies

We always focus on nurturing our employees to be all-round performers.
Programs for Management Trainees and Super Service are held to
develop talents and enable the Bank to stay competitive in a dynamic
business environment. Education allowances are offered to employees to
encourage them to further equip themselves to best serve the Bank and
the customers.

TE RSP B TIE7I RERELEE)
We organized regular recreational activities for our staff
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Work-life Balance

In 2016, the Bank continued to launch Staff Caring Weeks Program with
the theme of “Balance well to Reach High” to cultivate a strong sense of
social responsibility and raise the importance of health, family, leisure and
life-long learning amongst our workforce.

In order to help employees relieve their stress and maintain good
relationships with their families, various recreational and outdoor activities
were organized during the year for our staff and their families.

Community Services

We believe that by devoting resources and efforts in community services,
the Bank can contribute to the building of a harmonious society. The
Bank’s Volunteer Service Team actively participates in social activities and
contributes our efforts to the well being of the needy.

Donations and Sponsorships

The young generation is the pillars of our future, so we set up the
“Elite Student Award"” Scheme starting from 2005 to recognize the
achievements of primary and secondary students in different areas. Up till
now, over 1,100 students had been awarded.

In the past year, we have donated to various charity organizations,
including Caritas Macau, Orbis and Fu Hong Society.

In 2016, we sponsored the “YOUNTQUE" event organized by the Event
Management students of Institute for Tourism Studies. This event aimed
not just raising funds for the Macau Down Syndrome Association to help
those suffer from Down Syndrome, but more importantly, enhanced the
awareness of the society and children on Down Syndrome.

Our Volunteer Service Team actively participated in different charity and community services
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Volunteer Services

In 2016, 180 members of our Volunteer Service Team devoted 1,449
community service hours for a number of worthy causes. The Bank is an
active partner of ORBIS and Caritas in Macau to support their mission of
helping the poor and needy in the society. Aside from issuing the ORBIS
and Caritas Charity Credit Cards and donates 0.3% of spending on each
transaction to ORBIS and Caritas Macau, the Bank also sponsors and
supports the charity services of these two organizations. During the year,
we were one of the corporate ambassadors of ORBIS’s “Action for Sight”
in support of their sight-saving projects worldwide. Our Volunteer Service
Team also vigorously supported the “Short-term Food Assistance Service”
of Caritas Macau.

Future

We are proud of our strong commitments in all CSR aspects. CSR practices
in our Bank are dynamic and on-going. Looking ahead, we will continue
to identify opportunities to enhance our business practices from all CSR
perspectives by supporting various Non Government Organizations and
participate in voluntary work projects and fund-raising activities to further
support our community. We will continue our commitment to embody
CSR in our everyday business activities.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 21



BIAKBENREE

Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

BURBMBES
HEGKTRITRODERAAEF
(FBFTELI 8 B R 2 7))

HEBZINENFE24E 96 HEFBKFRITR
MERAR (AT &EEBIT]) AT _ I R
x o B HREEN2016F12A31ANEE
BEXR  HEZALEFEMKRSR  BRRERE
BERMBASRER M UREBSHBEH
TR Bl AR o

ESRMBRRAAENEE

ERITHESEEERERBRMEFRITHRES B
ROREHIE E32/93/M5 A S KB 25/200558 1T
BUE IR AT AR B9 B 75 3R o5 ZE BI Y F 51 /O 45 18 A Y
RAFMERAHHRENEM - ELETBER
BT BMEAESEE ARSI UG E K
LA MEBEREL ERMBHRER A E LR E
KRR BENERABEENSEBUR » RIZER
THEHAEN S G - URRTFTEEMERLS
GrRTACER

RBENEE
BANEEERERMINBZEZEHBERKRIE
HER o BPIRRRIRFIL T it € &) FEES 16
R ERABRRERERS o RULASN - BAIHRS
ETAAEEMAE - B THAREENA
B HEMEMATBESIRIDEREE -

BRI REORPIEF BT R 2 CRECER) (1
BEBREA)ETER - ELERNEREMET
BERE  WREIRNITER  NAERENSE
HBHBREE N FHEMNERBREL -

22 E/KFRITROBABDF - 20165 FH

Independent auditor’s report to the directors of
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A.
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banco OCBC
Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) set out on pages 24 to 96, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016, the income statement, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements as set out in the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-
Law No. 32/93/M) and the Financial Reporting Standards issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR"). This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining appropriate internal control
relevant to the preparation and the presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and
maintaining adequate and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards
and Technical Standards of Auditing issued by the Macau SAR. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement,
including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2016
and of its profits and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the requirements set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93M and the Financial
Reporting Standards of the Macau SAR.

This report is intended solely for filing with the Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau.

leong Lai Kun, Registered Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

24th Floor, B & C
Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares

Macau

15 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

(LB PTHETF T2 51 78) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
{hE=s
Note 2016 2015
FLEYA Interest income 4(a) 784,574 874,481
FEZE Interest expense 4(b) (212,161) (326,272)
BRI E WA Net interest income 572,413 548,209
FRES A Net fees and commission income 4(c) 142,240 162,584
BEEERAGZzEMITA Net gains from financial instruments
ZF W ER held for trading 5,784 742
HAb I A Other income 4(d) 45,603 65,474
EE 2PN Operating income 766,040 777,009
T Operating expenses 4(e) (351,681) (336,875)
HNBREFREERX Operating profit before impairment
REBATE SR T losses and allowances charged on
loans and advances 414,359 440,134
BERZMEEERR Impairment losses and allowances charged
TR on loans and advances 4(f) (1,514) (7,210)
=il Operating profit 412,845 432,924
HEAVEEERE 2 FEXL Net losses on disposal of tangible
fixed assets (45) (243)
HEAHEESREE 2)F NG Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets 5 326 -
RRBE A2 F Profit before taxation 413,126 432,681
THIE Taxation 6(a) (47,634) (55,599)
BRI B RER Profit after taxation 365,492 377,082
RERMLBEER(LERD Effects of additional impairment
REIENEFREEE 2L allowances for loans in accordance
with Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau (“AMCM") rules
B B 12 i A Profit after taxation 365,492 377,082
RIESE BIEHIE I BB Additional impairment allowances in 20(b)
B accordance with AMCM rules, net of tax  (v) (10,152) =
BREBEESERKRGFE 2R ERA Profit after taxation under AMCM rules 355,340 377,082

F28AEEFICH MW A WK — 7B
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The notes on pages 28 to 96 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

R2016%F12H31H At 31 December 2016
(LA EPT BT Tl 5)7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
k=3
Note 2016 2015
aE ASSETS
Be REFERIEITRIE - Cash and balances with banks, central banks

AR ERTT I E b B AR X and other financial institutions 9 1,159,051 1,207,590
TEBAEMERTT R 3 - Placements with banks, central banks and

AR SRTT I E b 5 B RIE other financial institutions 10 = 239,502
ECES Trade bills 11 11,687 9,490
BEEHABREE Trading assets 12 26,264 68,281
EFEHRRHEMIRE Advances to customers and other accounts 13 21,308,776 22,374,006
FHEBIZERAT R Amounts due from immediate holding 24(b)

EELIEINGIE S company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 4,673,231 6,345,774
AtEETRmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 15 4,057,982 1,854,721
BREEEE Tangible fixed assets 16 655,621 706,514
REE Total assets 31,892,612 32,805,878
REREEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITRIZE - PRI]ITR Deposits and balances of banks, central

H & BT T banks and other financial institutions 2,115 605
EPER - EH - #FER Current, fixed, savings and

HihlzmR other deposits of customers 27,789,727 28,385,909
BT R E Certificates of deposit issued 17 - 397,915
BEER®ARE Trading liabilities 18 28,150 107,775
FE A~ R HR R 18 Current tax payable 6(c) 49,809 53,674
BEERIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 6(d) 106,668 105,675
HiA & Other liabilities 19 359,265 336,294
EAEBIER T}Sﬁ Amounts due to immediate holding 24(b)

H%WE AIFIA company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 38,634 8,552
wam vl lebides  AeES 28008500
R Share capital 20 (a) 120,000 120,000
1 Reserves 3,398,244 3,289,479
BRmaA® Totalequity .. 3,518,244 3409479
HRREEFEE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31,892,612 32,805,878

HEESIEREBENR2017F3A15A%2

EFR
20
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2017.

Na Wu Beng
Lee Tak Lim

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March

The notes on pages 28 to 96 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

BZE2016F 1231 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LA PTHE T T 51 78) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2016
R k%
it i ] EERE BfifE EfifiE EERE BRREF RRERAE
Bank
premises  Investment
Share General legal  revaluation revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
WI6E1A1BE S At 1 January 2016 120,000 184,200 120,000 443512 129,233 170,321 2,200,213 3,409,479
BIRRE Dividends paid 8(b) - - - - - - (300,000) (300,000
BAREL Appropriation to requlatory
EEHESR reserve net of tax 20(b)v) - - - - - 10,152 (10,152) -
Rl Defiit on revaluation of
ROTLERER bank premises net of tax - - - (15,533) - - - (15,533)
BiR#EL Fair value changes of available-
HEELHAR for-sale financial
ATREZEY assets net of tax - - - - 58,806 - - 58,806
#hkA Transfer from reserve - - - (14,254) - - 14,254 -
Rzt Profit for the year - - - - - - 365,492 365,492
165128318 £8 At 31 December 2016 120,000 184,200 120,000 413,725 188,039 180,473 2,311,807 3,518,244
2015
St R
R —hRE iyt EftfiE BftfE EEfE BREF  BRER4E
Bank
premises Investment
Share General Legal revaluation revaluation Regulatory  Unappropriated Total
capital reserve reserve feserve reseve reserve profits equity
1551 B18 £ At 1 January 2015 120,000 184,200 120,000 541,521 91,652 170,321 1,849,947 3,077,641
BHRREZ Deficit on revaluation of
ROMLERER bank premises net of tax = = = (82,829) = = = (82,825)
BHRREL Fair value changes of available-
THEEERHER for-sale financia
ATEEZEY assets net of tax - - - - 37,581 = = 37,581
EREE Transfer from reserve = S = (15,184) S s 15,184 S
ER 7T Profit for the year - - - - - - 377,082 377,082
WI5E128318 4R At 31 December 2015 120,000 184,200 120,000 443512 129233 170,321 20,213 3,409,479

F28EEFI6H 2 B A B KA — 8
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26

E/KFRITROBABRDF - 20165 FH

The notes on pages 28 to 96 form part of these financial statements.



BaiER

Cash Flow Statement

HZE2016F 1231 HIFFZE For the year ended 31 December 2016
(LA PTHE T T 51 78) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
BT 5E
Note 2016 2015
HegFamEs (FA) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)
BRe®®E 2 operating activities 23(a) 598,172 (467,853)
REEE Investing activities
BABFETEE Purchase of tangible fixed assets (9,732) (24,544)
HEEFEEEEMNS Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 76 -
BARHEECREE Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets (3,070,252) (252,617)
FERBERAHEEESREETS  Proceeds from sales and redemption of
available-for-sale financial assets 1,458,086 368,434
2 U A% B Dividends received 5,253 3,748
HEREZRSm(ER) EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from
BE&FHE investing activities (1,616,569) 95,021
MEEE Financing activity
AR Dividends paid 8(b) (300,000) =
ERMAZRBMEA2RLFHE  Netcash usedin financing activity (3000000 -
HeRERBESLEHHD Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (1,318,397) (372,832)
BeRZEEARLEEMIB184E Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7,210,356 7,583,188
HeRERELEAR Cash and cash equivalents
128318 &8 at 31 December 23(b) 5,891,959 7,210,356
REHKLEBETHHESREBGIE . Cash flows from operating activities
include:
2 U F B Interest received 790,742 913,950
EFFI B Interest paid 234,267 371,269

F28EEFI6H MFABAAMB®EAAN —E  The notes on pages 28 to 96 form part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) was incorporated in
Macau on 2 September 1963. The Bank is engaged in commercial
banking and related financial services. The Bank has its registered

office and principal place of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida

Ribeiro, Macau.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Principal accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M
and the Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued under
Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR").

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Bank is set out below.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 15 March 2017.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas,
which is the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
MFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

(e)

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of MFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Financial instruments

()

Initial recognition

The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred.
The categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised using trade date accounting. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised using
settlement date accounting. From these dates, any gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
exclude those investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments.

The Bank has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this
category are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or net
payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (1) those that the Bank
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(3) those where the Bank may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and bank, and placements with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (note 2(j)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, but which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value are not recognised in the income
statement and are accumulated separately in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

— Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (note 2(j)). Interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method and dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(o)(i) and
2(o)(iii) respectively.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which are
released from the revaluation reserve.

—  Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices at the reporting date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets
are priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are
priced at current ask prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price
from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial
instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the fair value
of the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could be
obtained in actual market transactions.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the reporting
date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the reporting date.

(iv) Derecognition

(v)

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Bank uses the first-in, first-out method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit and loss on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative when (1) the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the host
contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with note (ii) above.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(f) Hedging
The Bank has no financial instruments which qualify for hedge

accounting.

(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

)

(i)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative
use are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued
amount, being their fair values at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity by professional
qualified valuers to ensure that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the reporting date. Changes arising on
the revaluation are generally dealt with in equity and are
accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve. The
only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to the income statement.

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (note 2())).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible
fixed assets that has already been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

(i) (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Freehold land and buildings
- Land Not depreciated
— Buildings 50 years
25 to 50 years
3 to 10 years

— Leasehold land and buildings

— Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

(iii) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
tangible fixed assets and bank premises are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

(h) Operating lease

Where the Bank leases out assets under operating leases, the
assets are included in the balance sheet according to their nature
and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Bank’s depreciation policies, as set out in note 2(g) except where
the asset is classified as an investment property. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(j).

Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank
may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
In accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in note
2(j), impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances
are maintained after taking into account the net realisable value
of the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets continue to be
treated as securities for loans and advance. The Bank does not
hold any repossessed assets for its own use. Repossessed assets
are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount of the related
loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of
exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Bank about one or more of the following loss events which
has an impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be
estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the
income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loans and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Bank is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against loans
and receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in the
income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and
collective impairment allowances.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows which are expected to be received discounted
at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of
any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Bank.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Bank makes
assumptions both to define the way the Bank models
inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Bank makes
depends on how well the Bank can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Bank believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to the income statement. A reversal of impairment
losses is limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Loans and receivables (continued)
When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan
and the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing
monitoring to determine whether they remain impaired or
overdue.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Such impairment
losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the income
statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each reporting date to identify indications that tangible fixed
assets (other than properties carried at revalued amount)
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro-rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

U]

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Balances
of banks, central banks and other financial institutions that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Bank's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plan are recognised as expenses in the income statement as
incurred.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available. Additional income taxes that
arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually
applies to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other liabilities. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(n)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under the
guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(o) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the
income statement as follows:

()

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

()

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to
the income statement over their expected life.

Interest income and expenses on all financial assets and
liabilities that are classified as trading or designated at fair
value through profit or loss are considered to be incidental
and are therefore presented in net income from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
together with all other changes in fair value arising from the
portfolio. Net income from financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss and net trading income
comprise all gains and losses from changes in fair value (net
of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with interest income and expense, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of
impaired financial assets due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate. When a loan commitment is
not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the commitment period.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included
in net realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial
instruments or financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains/losses arising from dealing
in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in reserves.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties

(1

2)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Bank if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Bank;

(ii) has significant influence over the Bank; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank’s parent.

An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1);

(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provide key management personnel services to the
Bank or to the Bank’s parent.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply: (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Note 26 contains information about the assumptions and their risk

factors relating to fair values of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment losses

(i)

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
accounting policy note 2(j). If management has determined,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence for impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the Bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of the current observable data. Management reviews
the methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash
flows regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

(i) Available-for-sale equity securities

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable
time period is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.
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(LBFTET T2 » Batbesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
4 EEHA 4 Operating profit
(a) FEWA (a) Interest income
2016 2015
FEBAIRE : Interest income arising from:
—EURFEERAER — financial assets not measured at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 784,574 874,481
He of which:
— FRRE 2 FBHA — interest income from listed investments 25,457 27,022
—3EETHIRE ZF BUWA — interest income from unlisted investments 22,689 15,391
—RESBREEHNEWMA — interest income from impaired financial assets 82 13
(b) REZH (b) Interest expense
2016 2015
FEZHIRE : Interest expense arising from:
—EU R FEEBEFARRZ — financial liabilities not measured at fair value
TR BE through profit or loss 208,644 323,906
—-BE=fgzAaE — trading liabilities 3,517 2,366
212,161 326,272
Hep: of which:
—BPER - TR HER — interest expense on current, fixed, savings
HaFmR A B and other deposits of customers 193,594 313,068
—RITRIZE - PRIFITREM - interest expense on deposits and balances of
SREBER A ESZH banks, central banks and other financial
institutions 15,050 10,838
(c) REERASWAFE (c) Net fees and commission income
2016 2015
RisE MES WA Fees and commission income
—BRATFRERS - Deposit related business 12,976 11,402
—BHEERER — Loan related business 15,675 19,473
— BB FED — Trade finance business 7,851 8,598
—BREERAEER - Credit cards 45,727 47,866
- REBEREE — Stock-broking fees 24,735 41,652
—EEERGE — Wealth management fees 6,349 6,947
—Hi KBRS — Other agency commissions 27,274 24,697
—Efth - Others 1,653 1,949
142,240 162,584
A ERTFIRZ RIS B MBS AFES The above fees and commission were generated from financial
EBREEFIEE B A MIEREURTF instruments that are not held for trading nor designated at fair
BEGTABZZEHMIA - value through profit and loss.
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4 EERN ) 4 Operating profit (continued)

(d) HEflA (d) Other income
2016 2015
% 2 WA Dividend income 5,253 3,748
HNE B B Wz Gains arising from dealing in foreign currencies 38,776 60,396
Hith Others 1,574 1,330
45,603 65,474
(e) BEZH (e) Operating expenses
2016 2015
EE A Staff costs
H e MEAEB KA Salaries and other staff costs 179,866 171,002
RIRIE R A AR Retirement benefit costs 12,253 10,733
192,119 181,735
TEIEFE 2T RRES Y Premises and equipment expense, excluding
depreciation 24,533 16,602
& (Kisx1e) Depreciation (note 16) 37,478 34,653
KEHEER Operating lease charges 2,731 3,252
ZEENE A Auditors’ remuneration 695 649
A Others 94,125 99,984
351,681 336,875
(f) ERRERAREGRRE (f) Impairment losses and allowances charged on loans and
advances
2016 2015
B MEER M EFHIRE  Impairment losses charged/(released) on loans
Bl 4) (f1zE14) and advances (note 14)
18 Bl S (B 2 48 Individually assessed 4,893 3,842
A Collectively assessed (3,379) 3,368
1,514 7,210
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(LBFTET T2 » Batbesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

5 HEUHHEESmMEEZ2FEIW 5 Net gain on disposal
= financial assets

of available-for-sale

2016 2015
HEREBEEIREREHFEZ Net unrealised gain transferred from investment
RERF = revaluation reserve upon disposal 299 =
HERHREESREE Y Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial
U assets 27 =
326 -
6 BIHA 6 Taxation
(a) WEmFTkAZHRES ! (a) Taxation in the income statement represents:
2016 2015
AEBIE - BMITEHT Current tax - Provision for Macau
BER Complementary Tax
NEFE A Provision for the year 49,500 53,430
TEHE-PEARKNE Current tax - The People’s Republic of
B China (“PRC”) withholding tax
NEEHERE Provision for the year 2 3,152
TEFEEBBR Over provision in respect of prior years (2,335) (983)
(2,333) 2,169
EEHIE Deferred taxation
TR ERES RER Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 467 -
47,634 55,599
2016 F ERFIFTIS M AR EH IR Z The provision for Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12%
FREAFTERD &M BIRITHE12% (2015: 12%) of the Bank’s estimated assessable profits for the
(20155 : 12%):t& - year ended 31 December 2016.
BRRAAN T EESRBEEANEEIR Taxation for offshore income is charged at the appropriate
ITERR R - current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
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6 ﬁrlﬁ(ﬁé’?) 6 Taxation (continued)

(b) BEXHRERERABRRZGHRAE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
BR : at applicable tax rate:
2016 2015
% %
R 750 A1 g A Profit before tax 413,126 100.00 432,681 100.00
FR A% A ) 2 Notional tax on profit before
ZEFE taxation 49,575 12.00 51,922 12.00
TR S 2 Tax effect of non-deductible
Mg E expenses 1,860 0.45 1,862 0.43
FEFERT R 2 Tax effect of non-taxable
HIBR 2 income (493) (0.12) (337) (0.08)
TEFEEBBE Over provision in prior years (2,335) (0.56) (983) (0.23)
Hpth Others (975) (0.24) (17) =
e A REMBETFEF Withholding tax in the PRC 2 = 3,152 0.73
ERHBREYH Actual tax expense 47,634 11.53 55,599 12.85
(c) EEEEBRAZKEHIES ! (c) Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:
2016 2015
SRPIET 1S f 7o B e 1 Provision for Macau Complementary Tax 49,809 53,674
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

6 Taxation (continued)
(d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:

EfTH  RESER
HEZ  HEIEMNZ
SREE WEEE
Revaluation  Additional B
of available- impairment $RATITHE
for-sale debt allowances Revaluation
financial under of bank S5
assets AMCM rules premises Total
EAEBIERE : Deferred tax arising from:
20165F1 H1H&% At 1 January 2016 (17,623) (23,225) (64,827) (105,675)
Uz =AM (k) /1248  (Charged)/credited to income
statement - (1,384) 917 (467)
HEAGRE) 1R B (Charged)/credited to reserves (8,019) = 7,493 (526)
2016912 A31 B % At 31 December 2016 (25,642) (24,609) (56,417) (106,668)
2015F1 A1 B &% At 1 January 2015 (12,498) (23,225) (76,121) (111,844)
HEA MG ) /1R’ (Charged)/credited to reserves (5,125) - 11,294 6,169
2015412531 A %54 At 31 December 2015 (17,623) (23,225) (64,827) __(105,675)

Bk Latsh -

7 EEREEAMS

RITRIE RIRB EMMER
BERRERBERERBCES -

Apart from the above, the Bank does not have any significant
unprovided deferred taxation arising for the year or as at the
reporting date.

7 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

2016 2015
=ik Fees 100 100
Hie Other emoluments 8,041 6,788
8,141 6,888

ARITHAREEE{RE QR WERB - M

% E AR B E AT o

52

Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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8 KRE 8 Dividends

(a) *FERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
2016 2015
RBEREBEIR 2 KRERE Final dividend of MOP Nil (2015: MOP250)
FREBRRFIEOT per ordinary share proposed after
(20154 : JBPI¥E2507T) the reporting date = 300,000
RERAEREIR 2 AREKRE - WA The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period
HERBERARE - has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
(b) RERMERKEZETFEESRE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and
paid during the year
2016 2015
REARERIRE 2 Final dividend in respect of the previous
FERAREBREBR year, approved and paid during the year of
SEPI# 25070 (20154 @ 4#) MOP250 (2015: Nil) per ordinary share 300,000 -

9 BENTFEWHEITHEZE - +R4$E 9 Cash and balances with banks, central banks

TREMSEEBIIE and other financial institutions
2016 2015
IR R Cash balances 421,665 431,904
F R RERTTFRIA Balances with central banks 571,322 567,687
FHERITR ¥ 308 Balances with banks 166,064 207,999
1,159,051 1,207,590

10 EHIEHRETREZE - v 10Placements with banks, central banks and
REM S SR other financial institutions

2016 2015

T HAERERTTR ¥ 208 Placements with banks - 239,502
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(LBFTET T2 » Batbesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
MEZEE 11 Trade bills
2016 2015
B5E8 Trade bills 11,687 9,490
AITRER - WES FlE S ERELRE During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been
AEE (20155 @ &) - made in respect of the above trade bills (2015: Nil).
12 EERREE 12 Trading assets
EEASEETZERTESRIAZER Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
FTEEREEEEBITERARR S &8 instruments and include balances with the immediate holding
AR 11,797,0007T (20154F : JRPIEE company amounting to MOP11,797,000 (2015: MOP7,828,000).
7,828,0007T) °
13 EFERRHEMIRIE 13 Advances to customers and other accounts
(a) EFERREMBEENRREES (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
2016 2015
REERBERE Gross advances to customers 21,102,568 22,265,189
BEERZ BRI R AEERE Individual impairment allowances for
(fzE14) impaired loans and advances (note 14) (3,665) (23,436)
B BRBREEE Collective impairment allowances for
(Bt3E14) loans and advances (note 14) (7,830) (11,209)
21,091,073 22,230,544
AERFPEE Customer liability under acceptances 92,820 48,057
JEETFI B Accrued interest 37,331 43,499
HAibBRIA Other accounts 87,552 51,906
21,308,776 22,374,006
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13 Advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

1B3FEFERKREMERE

(b) EFERITEDIE
BEPERZITERIREZEERZA
&0 B R AR EDRE 2 o

(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
The information concerning advances to customers by industry

sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the

usage of the advances and is stated gross of any impairment

allowances.
2016 2015
zF A P BE
BRAE EFEX B EFEXR
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
advances advances advances advances
to to to to
customers customers customers customers
ERMAEHCER Advances for use in Macau
T% HENSRE Industrial, commercial and financial
MIEER Property development 889,035 = 1,034,073 20,678
MERE Property investment 2,101,474 - 2,240,705 -
B i Financial concerns 76,683 - 19,495 =
BB ETELE Wholesale and retail trade 617,456 364 1,256,348 =
BE 2 Manufacturing 120,176 - 203,405 -
B BB R G Transport and transport equipment 176,164 - 98,527 =
BRI Information technology 8,269 - 809 -
BEEBZER Share financing 111,933 - 82,020 -
HAth Others 722,613 180 993,739 =
A Individuals
BETENMEZE Advances for the purchase of
residential properties 11,646,294 3,288 11,686,558 1,459
ERABER Credit card advances 213,134 350 209,559 548
HAth Others 3,868,847 6,085 3,992,396 3,136
20,552,078 10,267 21,817,634 25,821
ESmE Trade finance 348,156 - 387,882 -
ERMALIMEAZER Advances for use outside Macau 202,334 - 59,673 -
21,102,568 10,267 22,265,189 25,821
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BEFERRHEMIRE 2 13 Advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(c) BEZEFER (c) Impaired advances to customers
REZBRFEREE  HKHFSRMER The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
ERREEBITOT collaterals held with respect of such advances and individual

impairment allowances are as follows:

2016 2015
B2 BREER AR Gross impaired advances to customers 10,267 25,821
BERFERBEERER Gross impaired advances to customers as a
ERgE2aN percentage of total advances to customers 0.05% 0.12%
BEEFPER ZERRTE Market value of collateral held with respect to
impaired advances to customers 4,510 22,137
1833 (B ZE Individual impairment allowances 3,665 23,436
BEZZREEFESEREE - ETE Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans
BLELERER 2 ZERMEZEE - B35tk with objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
ZERERAUGE S5 2R IR BRI Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after
BRI 2R EERE r MZEMRTE taking into account the net present value of future recoverable
BIEYE o amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and the

collaterals held mainly comprised properties.

R2016FF 12 A31H k2015912 A 31 There are no impaired advances to bank nor individual
B AITETRITRAEZREF - WE impairment allowances made on advances to bank as at 31
SMEZRTREES  EREERR December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
=R

(d) KEEE (d) Repossessed assets
MR2016%12 A31H & 2015412 A 31 At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Bank did not
A KMTEBERBEERMKEIEE - hold any repossessed assets.
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14 EFERZBEEE

14Impairment allowances on loans and
advances to customers

2016
1& 51 B &5t
Individual Collective Total

11848 At 1 January 23,436 11,209 34,645
i Additions 6,735 1,514 8,249
[o] Releases (1,842) (4,893) (6,735)
R W e 7R 0F 88 (M RE4(f) Net charged to income

statement (note 4(f)) 4,893 (3.379) 1,514
WEAFEMBR 2ER Recoveries of advances written

off in prior years 1,746 - 1,746
FRMWER Amounts written off (26,410) - (26,410)
12 A31 B &% (M5E13(a)) At 31 December (note 13(a)) 3,665 7.830 11,495

2015
&35 =g A&t
Individual Collective Total

1R1BE &% At 1 January 23,421 7,841 31,262
i Additions 4,288 7,210 11,498
[5] #% Releases (446) (3,842) (4,288)
BB FTFRE (M FE4) Net charged to income

statement (note 4(f)) 3,842 3,368 7,210
W e F FE Mk 2B Recoveries of advances written

off in prior years 361 - 361
F A HIBR Amounts written off (4,188) = (4,188)
12 A31 8 48 (MisE13(a)) At 31 December (note 13(a)) 23,436 11,209 34,645
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15 AHHESREE 15 Available-for-sale financial assets
2016 2015
BHEES Debt securities
BAHEEET—IE LM (BTES) Issued by sovereigns — unlisted (Treasury bills) 2,883,211 412,977
EEFEIT—- LW Issued by corporates — listed 604,513 637,844
ERIT—IELT Issued by corporates — unlisted 91,077 91,737
EREEEIT— L™ Issued by financial institutions — listed 29,036 88,395
ERIEEEIT LT Issued by financial institutions — unlisted 200,287 444,740
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 3,808,124 1,675,693
KBE Equity securities
ERIT—FELET Issued by corporates — unlisted 205,274 134,714
HEBEIT— LT Issued by corporates — listed 44,584 44,314
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 249,858 179,028
4,057,982 1,854,721
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16 BB EEE 16 Tangible fixed assets

2016
- 15
RERER
Furniture,
fixtures,
RATITHE equipment
Bank and motor &5t
premises vehicles Total
AR EE : At cost or valuation:
201651 A1 A& At 1 January 2016 692,600 184,291 876,891
= Additions 26 9,706 9,732
HeE Disposals — (5,402) (5,402)
BHEE Deficit on revaluation (23,026) - (23,026)
I EHIRITITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated depreciation
Zith & on revalued bank premises (16,558) = (16,558)
2016512)%315%k B At 31 December 2016 653,042 188,595 841,637
HEHE - Accumulated depreciation:
201651 A1 H &8 At 1 January 2016 35,929 134,448 170,377
AREE R B (FaEde)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 18,805 18,673 37,478
o E MBS Written back on disposals - (5,281) (5,281)
EIHEHIRITITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated depreciation
2t E on revalued bank premises (16,558) - (16,558)
201612 A31 B &6k At 31 December 2016 38,176 147,840 186,016
BREFE - Net book value:
2016412 A31H &8k At 31 December 2016 614,866 40,755 655,621

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2016 59



MR RMEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LBFTET T2 » Batbesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
16 EEEEE® 16 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
2015
R~ s -
RS &L
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
RITITHE and motor BE
Bank premises vehicles Total
AR EE : At cost or valuation:
201541 A1 B &84 At 1 January 2015 803,309 165,006 968,315
= Additions 14 24,530 24,544
HeE Disposals = (5,245) (5,245)
EHBE Deficit on revaluation (94,119) = (94,119)
EIHEHIRITITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated depreciation
Zitine on revalued bank premises (16,604) = (16,604)
7270715%71727573717?7,%:: 77777 At 31 December 2015 692,600 184,291 876,891
HEHE - Accumulated depreciation:
201541 A1 B 464 At 1 January 2015 33,681 123,649 157,330
NEERE (MEE4 ) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 18,852 15,801 34,653
H & iR Written back on disposals - (5,002) (5,002)
I EHIRITITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated depreciation
2 E on revalued bank premises (16,604) - (16,604)
201512 A31 B &6k At 31 December 2015 35,929 134,448 170,377
BRERE : Net book value:
2015412 A31H &8 At 31 December 2015 656,671 49,843 706,514
M2016F12A318 » FIBRFETEHAZR All of the Bank’s bank premises held for administrative use were
RITITH - ERABRBLASMITE —AFHR revalued by an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation
wHHELREXBEMAERAT (HHHET and Professional Services Limited as at 31 December 2016, who
REBHEMBENBEREE)EM - %A have among their staff, Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
AL E Y ERFTEHE ARG ER Surveyors, with recent experience in the location and category of
THRRALE - property being valued.
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16 BB EEE®

RITHUMERETHRAZMNRITITL
R & 4 5 18 R P9 15,533,000 7T (2015 -
R P 82,825,000 7 ) (E A BB
23,026,000, (20154 : J®F9#94,119,000
JC ) PR 0 B i RE B 78 8 P9 % 7,493,000 7T
(20154 : JBPI%511,294,0007T) % ) B FERR
RIERPHER  YHESTTUHEGEETR
B

BRTRETRAR ZRITITUE AR AR &
EFHIMEAR - HEEEAER2016F12 A31
B fE AR P9#45,672,0007T (20154 « JBFS
#47,058,0007T) °

RITITU 2 FREVFELT AT -

16 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The net revaluation deficit on bank premises held for administrative
use of MOP15,533,000 (2015: MOP82,825,000) (being revaluation
deficit of MOP23,026,000 (2015: MOP94,119,000) net of deferred
tax of MOP7,493,000 (2015: MOP11,294,000) have been recognised
in equity and accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve.

The carrying amount of the Bank premises held for administrative
use would have been MOP45,672,000 (2015: MOP47,058,000) at
31 December 2016 had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The analysis of net book value of bank premises is as follows:

2016 2015
TR Z Kk A EERE Freehold held in Macau 260,790 272,656
R AL Leasehold held in Macau
— R HATE A — Short-term leases
(BEEI0F AT E) (less than 10 years unexpired) 354,076 384,015
614,866 656,671

17 EBITERR

2015%F © £ /5B 397,915,000T21F
REMEBIZERARET MEBIZERAF
EBLTRBETHLHEABERELTIRE
EHUERENE—PRE - LEZRFER
201646 A 16 B 2| #1 B 20164 M I & 21T

EERARAE
EERARABIEANTASRMIAZAR
FEELBEEEBERARNR S Z&4%
AR P98 20,396,000 7T (20154 : SRPI#E
100,171,0007T) °

17 Certificate of deposit issued

In 2015, certificate of deposit (“CD") of MOP397,915,000 was issued
to the immediate holding company, which acted as the arranger
of the CD issuance and underwrote the entire issue for further
distribution to potential investors. The CD was matured on 16 June
2016 and there was no CD issued during 2016.

18 Trading liabilities

Trading liabilities represent the negative fair values of derivative
financial instruments and include balances with the immediate
holding company amounting to MOP20,396,000 (2015:
MOP100,171,000).
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19 HMEE

19 Other liabilities

2016 2015
BRI B Interest payable 33,259 55,365
A Ak Acceptances outstanding 92,820 48,057
EFE R ERNE B Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 55,103 50,034
RE Cashier order 81,876 61,591
Hib Others 96,207 121,247
359,265 336,294
20 RA K f# e 20 Share capital and reserves
(a) BR& (a) Share capital
2016 2015
ARREWRRERA : Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,000% 2 3@ A & 1% 1,200,000 ordinary shares of MOP100 each
EFPIEE1007T 120,000 120,000

EEEFEAGEKRTEE IR K
B TARRATHNEZLRER—F
BT ARE o T8 EBRBREARITHRER
FEEHFEREH -

(b) f#E
(i) —RFE
—REFRBRRFERK LB
Ak 3 o
(ii) EERE

EERBIRBMASREREZHE
%£32/93M5ES F 6018 RIBPIE
RN EAS2UE Z REMR S ©

(iii) WE B fh{#HE
BREBHRFEERRAIHEESRE
EZRFARAAEBEEY  MEZ%
BERK IR IR E2e)A
fr - REEMREBLIFEER ZF
o WEARKE o

62 E/KFRITROBABRDF - 20165 FH

(b)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meeting of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Bank's residual assets.

Reserves

(i) General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

(ii) Legal reserve

Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of
Decree Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau
Commercial Code.

(iii) Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets until the assets are derecognised and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e). It
does not represent realised profits and is not available for
distribution.



20 BA K #E )
(b) B4
(iv) BITTH EE B

(v)

RITITU B (A A T IR R 2(g) A
FREVIRITITU B Z Z5 - RIT1T
HEHFEHAIFCERZAE - X
J& A AR

EERE

RS EREDE18/935 2 K
T EREBUFHRMERRR
BHERAS —E A0 RIES
RS MEKCIEEERE
ERERMINZEEEHRER I
HBRE1%Z—RERE - &A1T
Z B BORE R IR IR R 2() P
TEBEER  WABEZETOR
BEEINEERZRIEERE
AITHSHBRRFHEL —ERER
ZRIEEFRKFREFREER
ER - EABRNEAFERBARE
- AEEEEREIITOT

20 Share capital and reserves (continued)
(b) Reserves (continued)
(iv) Bank premises revaluation reserve

(v)

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for the revaluation of bank premises in note 2(g). It does not
represent realised profits and is not available for distribution.

Regulatory reserve

In accordance with Aviso n.°18/93-AMCM, financial
institutions are required to maintain a minimum level
of specific provision for a bad and doubtful loan at a
percentage depending on the overdue period of the
loan, and a general provision at a minimum of 1% (“the
minimum level”) of the total balance of performing loans
and certain credit-related off-balance sheet exposure. The
Bank recognises allowance for impairment losses on loans
and advances in accordance with the policy as set out in note
2(j). In case where such impairment allowances are lower
than the minimum level as required by AMCM, the Bank will
transfer an amount, which is equal to the difference between
the allowance and the minimum level, after adjustment
for taxation impact, from its unappropriated profits to the
regulatory reserve. The amount of regulatory reserve transfer
for the year is as follows:

2016 2015
—RiEAe 2RERE (Decrease)/increase in impairment
G-V il allowances for general provision (8,220) 187
BIEE R g 2R M 3R B Specific provision recognised under IAS
& &R ERIg N2 but not under AMCM rules
FEBRD 19,756 (187)
RESE RIEHIZSRKIE N2 Net increase in impairment allowances
REEEFE under AMCM rules 11,536 =
EINFERE 2 A Tax effect on the additional impairment
(FMtEE6(d)) allowances (note 6(d)) (1,384) -
10,152 -
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21 BEEBRUIIZEABERE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

21 Off-balance sheet exposures

(a) RABBRARNEREEE

IRNEBRAEERANENEERSE
BERBHRZ RGBS - FHEHRF
R BEREZEEHERHEMRS
UREEFHETR  BEAUREHREER
MIERE  BREEE - GLEEEH
TAEMPRZER  KBHRRHREET
PSRk EERRIER - HEER
T RINE MR BB B PR
g Rz RBREa o MR KA R K
EEARMEERR IS ISR &
HNEBRRBI TR RKZRAERE

AEEERRINESESEBEERB
£38011/201558 2R E * FT B 2 R R
IIENTF0%ZE100% -

AT BBHEERER 2 HRE AR
ZHEZERE

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward
asset purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares
and securities, forward deposits placed, asset sales or other
transactions with recourse, as well as credit-related instruments
which include, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments
to extend credit. The risk involved in these credit instruments is
essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The contractual amounts represent the
amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and
the client defaults. Since a significant portion of guarantees and
commitments is expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total of the contract amounts is not representative of future
cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts ranged from 0% to 100% in accordance with AMCM
Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM.

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2016 2015
BEEEZEERER Direct credit substitutes 181,038 175,569
B 5B SRER Trade-related contingencies 44,703 69,617
B Other commitments
— RAHAR 801 — With an original maturity of
not more than 1 year 45,063 241,073
—RANEABR1F LA E — With an original maturity over 1 year 269,799 403,676
— A EEHEUS — Which are unconditionally cancellable 2,911,527 2,671,781
BFr Total 3,452,130 3,561,716
= EE SR Credit risk weighted amount 410,146 473,169
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1 EEEBRUNZEABEES
(b) EAEIE
MI2ZANBRBEALEETEEML
REM IR EH A2 B RAEL
T

ERERFIT KX

Expenditure authorised and contracted for

21 Off-balance sheet exposures (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2016 2015

1,828 6,149

EREERBRF K 2RAX

Expenditure authorised but not contracted for - -

(0 REHEERE
R12A318 @ REFAHEOLEER
E - ARREEMEEFELENT ¢

(c) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for properties and
equipment are payable as follows:

2016 2015
1FER Within one year 1,049 1,486
15 A E1B5F A After one year but within five years 377 138
1,426 1,624

AT EAERABALIEYEMS
B - HEFH-—ROT1Z24EA - &
MERBENEBEMIERESRZE - 1B
HAHOWTTEERARS -

The Bank leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to twenty-four months, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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66

TEEMTA
ETARENBAN LEERTHIR
M—ER S ERAEERIEEME -

ROIARBONTET AR GRABREEFT
o HHBRAURARTZELRERRES -
KAOITEABRERE - XTZHEHER S
RALTBEREEFTEBIMATIEZ W
5 MAEMZEHNT A DA EEEY
2 e E TR - AT EERE ARt
HTEEHFEFEERERE - #ZE20165F12
A3VBEmBITEIEAABEZEEKAE
PRREERBBERRNZ [EERBREEIR
[EERZEEIR -

(a) TETAZEREH
TRBFTIVTETANBERNRES
BRERNSRIBMANDON - WETA
ZHRBETHEENBEARARTRIR S
B Y PRKREREE -

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

22 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The majority of the derivatives transactions were initiated in response
to customer demand and the remaining were economic hedges for
the Bank’s fixed-interest rate loans and debt securities. No significant
speculative positions are maintained by the Bank. The Bank entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed-rate loans so as to achieve
a floating rate return. The Bank has not elected to adopt hedge
accounting in respect of these swaps. The positive and negative fair
values of the derivatives as at 31 December 2016 were reported
within “trading assets” and “trading liabilities” respectively on the
balance sheet.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
of derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date.
The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume
of outstanding transactions at the reporting date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

2016
10 E
B5F R
Over
1FR 1 year 54k
Within  but within Over SEr
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
EEXEL Exchange rate contracts
B Forwards 1,710,820 448,283 - 2,159,103
EE YNl Options purchased 790,319 431,055 - 1,221,374
S o BA Options written 790,319 431,055 - 1,221,374
AEEAE 4 Interest rate swap contracts - 412,000 - 412,000
IRE=EME L Equity contracts
BE A\ HR#E Options purchased 5,315 - - 5,315
S b HR A Options written 5,315 - - 5,315
3,302,088 1,722,393 - 5,024,481
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22 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)
(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)

2015
1A
1F A B5F R S5FLAE &5t
Over 1 year
Within but within Over

1 year 5 years 5 years Total

[EEREH) Exchange rate contracts
= Forward 6,472,775 111,942 - 6,584,717
BE A HA#E Option purchased 1,072,314 223,535 - 1,295,849
v R Option written 1,072,314 223,535 - 1,295,849
K RIg A 49 Interest rate swap contracts 36,050 51,500 = 87,550

fREHE 4 Equity contracts
B A B Options purchased 4,159 - - 4,159
oy HA Options written 4,159 _ _ 4,159
8,661,771 610,512 - 9,272,283
(b) PFTETAZEERBMESHE (b) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives

2016 2015
EEREH Exchange rate contracts 75,356 135,670
F=I5 HI A 49 Interest rate swap contracts 2,927 129
IREEEE L Equity contracts 448 336
78,731 136,135

T E (= B R AN 4E 2058 P A 2 [RUBS AN A
TR EEERBEE0I/20155H 2 E
AFEEHEBREAERIUARR ZEF
EAMKR - BIHIA - [EXE4 - FXig
H - RESBE QA2 RBRMEN T
0%ZE100% °

WERBIL R REEFEL LT
@,

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed
in accordance with AMCM Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM on
capital adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range
from 0% to 100% for exchange rate, interest rate swap and
equity contracts.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.
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23 REREBRMEE
() BATRFISE & HE A EE/ ()2

23 Notes to the cash flow statement
(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

68

HE FHEYERR generated from/(used in) operating activities
2016 2015
EEIEE Operating activities
R 75 A A Profit before taxation 413,126 432,681
SRR Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 37,478 34,653
HEBFETEEEZFIBR Net losses on disposal of tangible fixed
assets 45 243
HEMHEETHEEY Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
F financial assets (326) =
PEEBRESFZF Amortisation of net (premium)/discount of
Caf&), /¥ debt securities (8,940) 526
DEBITERE 2N Amortisation of discount of certificates of
deposit issued 1,258 120
A& S A Dividend income (5,253) (3,748)
HNEE 5 A TE K Foreign exchange loss 3,676 40,193
BB E K M AR Impairment losses and allowances charged
on loans and advances 1,514 7,210
F B UM AR Net loans and advances written off (24,664) (3,827)
417,914 508,051
BREAPR A =1{& A3 A £ 2 $87T Decrease in placements with banks with
TR original maturity over three months 239,502 1,129,689
BEEE(3Eh) (Increase)/decrease in trade bills (2,197) 4,270
BERSGEERL,(EmM) Decrease/(increase) in trading assets 42,017 (56,803)
EFPERRHMERIE Decrease/(increase) in gross advances to
S (#0) customers and other accounts 1,088,380 (259,489)
[RAHAR A =18 Ask A 2 1FH  (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
BHEERATRRBEZNMEBAT  immediate holding company and fellow
ZEIEGEM) SR subsidiaries with original maturity over
three months (115,598) 1,369,837
RITAZE PRIFTREMERE  Increase/(decrease) in deposits and balances
W 2 g, GRlA) of banks, central banks and other financial
institutions 1,510 (43,641)
BEEKR THRREEEFEZURY Decrease in current, fixed, savings and other
deposits of customers (596,182) (1,900,220)
FRECRD),/ N (Decrease)/increase in certificates of deposits (399,570) 397,765
BEEREEECHY), LN (Decrease)/increase in trading liabilities (79,625) 91,937
HEmadEEmn GRd) Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 22,971 (81,626)
HEEZRATREZMB AT Z Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
Faagam Opd) immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 30,082 (1,577,665)
REEITBHEE (FH) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in) the
BEeFH operations 649,204 (417,895)
BRI SE R R Macau Complementary Tax and PRC
I AR AMBEEINR Withholding Tax paid (51,032) (49,958)
HEETHEE (FR) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in)
REeFE operating activities 598,172 (467,853)
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23 IRERERMT ) 23 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(b) REREFARSEE 29 (b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015

Re REMERITRZE - FREIBIT  Cash and balances with banks, central banks

B & B HE IR and other financial institutions 1,159,051 1,207,590
FREBER AT REHB AT Amounts due from immediate holding
KIA company and fellow subsidiaries
— e RIFHERTTRIZERIA — Cash and balances with banks 98,702 75,678
—RAHRA=MEA A — Placements with banks with original
RE HATE URTT RIS K08 maturity within three months 3,702,946 5,514,111
AEHECEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
-~ BN ES — Treasury bills 931,260 412,977
5,891,959 7,210,356
20 ERBEALTRS 24 Material related party transactions
(a) EBTHRABZHE (a) Key management personnel remuneration
FETBRABZME, BFEWT7PIHKE Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
FEFTERITE S IR BIMT ¢ paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:
2016 2015
HHEBEA Short-term employee benefits 17,583 16,224
BERL R T Post-employment benefits 1,564 1,462
19,147 17,686
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(b) EEEZRAARBAMBLARAZRS

REZR,ATEAEBZERDBER/K
FTRITERAFARBAEMBAR 2R
5 9B —RIEH X LB R R T -

RIRBRERMBSHMEE M 225 R
W FAZKE BEBEXRA S
BIAE 2 W& B AR KL TR
T

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

24 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries
During the year, transactions with the Bank’s immediate holding
company, OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited and fellow subsidiaries
were entered into by the Bank in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the income and expense for the
year, on and off-balance sheet outstandings at the reporting
date and corresponding average balances for the year are set out

below:
(i) WMARXH (i) Income and expense

2016 2015
A2 WA Interest income 82,179 111,511
A2 Interest expenses (4,990) (13,184)
e Other income 20,592 =

BEEERECEMIAY Net profit from financial instruments
5 A held for trading 5,785 742
ZiEE A Operating expenses (30,631) (30,507)
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20 ERBEANELRF #) 24 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) EEERAARBEAMBELAR ZRS (b) Transactions with immediate holding company and fellow
(&) subsidiaries (continued)
(i) EEEBERAZER (i) On-balance sheet outstandings
HEE A& T AR
Ending balance Average balance
2016 2015 2016 2015
BE Assets

R4 RFHIEFTE Cash and balances with banks,

¥ . hREEITRHE  central banks and other

th & A A IR financial institutions 98,702 76,734 87,730 602,053
THIZERITRIZ - Placements with banks, central

iR TR EMSE  banks and other financial

RIS IR institutions 4,547,876 6,252,163 7,042,069 6,453,651
REEHEREMIES Advances to customers and
other accounts 26,653 16,877 22,806 30,114

4,673,231 6,345,774 7,152,605 7,085,818

=L Liabilities

$R1TEE - P REE7T Deposits and balances of
REMESE#E >  banks, central banks, and

F= other financial institutions 38,398 7,913 22,194 265,972

BEEAR - T8 - Current, fixed, savings and
EE R EMIER other deposits of customers 218 218 218 218
HuaE Other liabilities 18 421 447 1,789
38,634 8,552 22,859 267,979
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

24 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with immediate holding company and fellow

(%) subsidiaries (continued)

(i) EERERP AR

BHEH

Contract amounts

Direct credit substitutes

HEEEERIAA

(iii) Off-balance sheet outstanding

Ending balance Average balance
2016 2015 2016 2015
31,424 - 5,258 -

(iv) STE SR T B2 &8k

(iv) Derivative financial instruments outstanding

HEE RS T4t eR
Ending balance Average balance

2016 2015 2016 2015
EREE Notional amounts
RHEE RS 4 Forward exchange rate

contracts 2,657,965 6,421,136 4,861,447 5,873,023

ESEECIES) Interest rate swap contracts 412,000 87,550 354,921 87,550
1 ZEMEE 4 Equity contract 5,315 4,159 3,889 6,331

() EFER
2FERP2016F12 A31B 2 HBEER
B AT (20154 « ) o

(d) A BERETLAETEBEALZ
IBME L ERDBER K ERH (20155 ¢
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(c) Loans to directors
Aggregate amount of relevant loans outstanding during the year
and at 31 December 2016 is Nil (2015: Nil).

(d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been
made in respect of the above advances to related parties (2015:
&) o Nil).
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AITOHIEREK - B RRE - NEEARTT
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MHITAITEERRER
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EERRNERRETTREREENG
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BT EEMER - FERZEERNIE
F - BERDBERGIOREMNBEER - WiR
BRFISRE R BE M AE S| KRR
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25 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risk that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to
identify, measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk market
risk and operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures
and limits are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated
committee, and are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant
risk management committees, such as the Credit Committee and the
Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO"). Internal
auditors perform regular audits and independent checking to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each
of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of
capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’'s credit risk
management to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the
Bank’s General Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the
business units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies
and ensures the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit
approval is conducted in accordance with the Bank’s credit policy,
which defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval
and monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued
by Macau SAR with respect to large exposures and impairment
requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in
the Bank’s Loaning Manual, which is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Credit Committee. The Loaning Manual covers
the delegated lending authorities, credit extension criteria, credit
monitoring process, loan classification system, credit recovery
and impairment policy.
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(i)

(i)

EREERR
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

()

(i)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. In addition to market targeting,
the principal means of managing credit risk is the credit
approval process. The Bank has policies and procedures to
evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty
or transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate
clients, the Bank has a detailed risk grading system that
is applied to each counterparty on a regular basis. The
Bank also has limits for exposure to individual industries
and for borrowers and groups of borrowers, regardless of
whether the exposure is in the form of loans or non-funded
exposures. The Bank also has a review process to ensure the
proper level of review and approval depending on the size of
the facility and risk grading of the credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring
at several levels. The credit policies promote early detection
of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Committee oversees the
overall portfolio risk as well as individual problem loans and
potential problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks
with respect to different products and types of customers.
The Bank monitors its own and industry experience to
determine and periodically revise product terms and desired
customer profiles.

(iii) Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit
risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same
credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.



25 Bt E bR EIE () 25 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) EEREBEE(Z) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) EERBNEH (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
TD,\J—WME’JEEP/J?F‘ Re5EF Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
SR E %&ﬁ,ﬁj@ﬂ%l%ﬂ’] geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
si MZzEEENEEEZERKY groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
TITHMBRBEAREBES - KRENK material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank
REBEZRA E&Iﬂ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁjz does not have significant exposure to any individual or group
SRIESN - AT B R EA - of customers or counterparties except for the amount due to
BEFIIHHFEESTARR - the immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.
(1) =EBRER (1) Maximum exposure
ETET AR R EMD The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
Eﬁﬁ}%ﬂ'E’J’FﬁT il = date without taking into consideration of any collaterals
Mx=EERR  SIEEEA held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
fﬁ%ﬁq%lﬁﬁmﬂééﬁm%ﬁ@ carrying amount of each financial assets in the balance
@i‘iﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ o ZIER S sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. A
BN summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:
2016 2015

FHERITREE - P RIBITR Balances with banks, central banks

Hth & BRI and other financial institutions 737,386 775,686
FEHAFERIRTTRIZE  PRIET Placements with banks, central banks
NE 5 B 5 IE and other financial institutions = 239,502
B HRE Trade bills 11,687 9,490
EERREE Trading assets 26,264 68,281
EFERRHMIRIA Advances to customers and other
accounts 21,308,776 22,374,006
FHREBERARRRAZR Amounts due from immediate
B /8 A RISk IE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 4,673,231 6,345,774
AEEEemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 4,057,982 1,854,721
BISERLREMEERARB > Financial guarantees and other credit
HARETE related contingent liabilities 225,741 245,186
B EREMEERERZ Loan commitments and other credit
HHE related commitments 3,226,389 3,316,530
34,267,456 35,229,176
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(a) EERAREEE)
(iv) EEEBRIES(F)

@)
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(2) Credit quality of loans and advances

Advances to bank are only made to bank with good
credit rating. The credit quality of advances to customers
can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
EEEREEE Gross advances to customers
—3EB At IER(E — neither past due nor impaired 20,618,862 21,932,428
—BEBEIERE — past due but not impaired 473,439 306,940
— BB (BFEE13(c)) — impaired (note 13(c)) 10,267 25,821
21,102,568 22,265,189
Hep Of which:
BEEERBEE Gross advances to customers
— 1% A — Grade 1: Pass 21,040,427 22,118,843
—2#% - K RIEER — Grade 2: Special mention 51,874 120,525
—3% : TEAEE — Grade 3: Substandard 3,649 20,944
—44%  EEEIRIE — Grade 4: Doubtful 3,828 1,441
—5#% 1Bk — Grade 5: Loss 2,790 3,436
21,102,568 22,265,189

FITRRHEEEEERA®
RANERDBHEE D E

=,
N
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The Bank classifies the loans and advances in accordance
with the loan classification system adopted by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").
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(iv) EERBYEHH)
2) B EEEEE)

3)

BEEIEREZ TP EFREK
DT

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

()

Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
BEEIERE TP ERE%  Gross advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired 472,824 304,742
— @E3E A KA T — past due 3 months or less
— 6f@ Ak A NE3E A A £ — 6 months or less but over 3 months 615 =
— 1F kA T~Bef@ AN E — 1 year or less but over 6 months = 2,198
473,439 306,940

R2016F 12 8318 » K17
2B FEE P E 16 RUE iR Ef
LBENEFPEFERME
813,0007T (20154 : &) »

BEFP RIRITRIFEH U 2

MEXZEERRER TR
AITEEEERRERETA—
% AR S FERER
APAR - S EHE R R 5 8 FRE
REE - BEATEERE - B
FREZBEERE  BAIKTT
TERERNIEELBIRR
5 AT HIBBB AR & 75 75 5 =k
FRIAR -

3)

As at 31 December 2016, advances to customers that
would be past due or impaired had the terms not been
renegotiated amounted to MOP813,000 (2015: Nil).

Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to
customers and bank

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending
risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
with individual counterparty limits set. It is the Bank’s
credit policy not to invest debt securities that are below
the grading of BBB by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
or their equivalents unless it is approved by the Credit
Committee.

77
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(a) EERBEEH)
(iv) EERBEHH)
3) BEFERTAZELL S

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(3) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to

78

BEEZEEEX(E)
RikE R - RBERTREE
EEEBIRRIS R E SR
BHEEMDNT 2 EEERE
BEEENT

customers and bank (continued)

At the reporting date, the credit quality of investment
in debt securities analysed by designation of external
credit assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Services or their equivalents, is as follows:

2016 2015
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 3,058,534 705,928
A-EA+ A- to A+ 293,257 511,681
ERA- Lower than A- 77,994 76,018
AR Unrated 378,339 382,066

3,808,124 1,675,693

(4) HBFBELEMIEHEET

AOTREFPERMIT A MER
B AEtEEEMER R
FREERELANER R

SBREIFRENEREET
FENERGREMERRET
B ATFEERBOT

SUBHIMBIEREZ EREEMR
BzEBRmREMERRZ

RNHEME

(4) Collaterals and other credit enhancements
The Bank holds collaterals against advances to
customers in the form of mortgages over property,
other registered securities over assets, cash deposits and
guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held against past due but not
impaired financial assets is as follows:

2016 2015
Fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held against
financial assets that are past due
but not impaired 2,142,807 1,148,787

BEPERRITERMNEDWE
& &b oy T Y RE 13 A

o

i

i
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Analysis of credit risk concentration by the industrial
sector of advances to customers is disclosed in note 13.
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NEBESRBEIEREEEUNENEE
BRNENIIPERORER - KITEFT
InRBERERERBR - BREMAE
BHEESEENRBES °

MBHECHAEREEBEEEEZE
WAt ER EEAEBEEREEZES
REEE WA - BREE B
ERENEMAIZEREE SRR ES
HISHATHK  BEEERDESR
REBEH HRRERBANRHE
SHERREF - #5  FrEREERE
BoRE  UREEHRSHESRERE
BRI - EESRERDECRBERK
MWK - #HaEgRdEcRkEs
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Eﬂl B
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KAEARSUENEES  TEELAR
TTRERETS ° B - RITHER T
EOHEREE - KEMERRERRD
REBSHFEXR - AINEHRRBES
AIETTE RIS - AR 2R 58
RARBESR - U TZARTERBEERE
BRI IR RE B HBES T
HRHEIR o

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank'’s inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the treasury under the
direction of ALMCO. ALMCO, which comprises personnel
from senior management, treasury function, risk management,
financial management and other business areas that could
affect liquidity risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity
risk management, in particular implementation of appropriate
liquidity policies and procedures, identifying, measuring and
monitoring liquidity risk, and control over the liquidity risk
management process. The Board of Directors approves the
liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains continued awareness
of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures liquidity risk is
adequately managed and controlled by senior management
within the established risk management framework.

To cater for short term funding requirements during ordinary
course of business, sufficient liquid assets are held and also
access to the interbank market is maintained. In addition,
adequate standby facilities are maintained in order to meet any
unexpected and material cash outflow. The Bank also performs
regular stress tests on its liquidity position to ensure adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times. The following tables set
out the detail of the analysis of the Bank’s material assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
periods at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the

S contractual maturity date
2016
18R 3f8AR
B WEB  1ERE
3MEAR 15h 55
Over Over Over
PEESR  1EBR  Tmonth  3months Tyear  SEBE
Repayable Within ~ but within ~ but within  but within Over B9 ag
ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
BE Assets
BARBEMSTAE . Cashand balances with banks,
PRETRER central banks and other financial
SRBENE institutions 923829 234818 - - - - 404 1,159,051
EUES Trade bills 1417 2,501 7,005 674 - - - 168
BEERREE Trading assets - - - - - - 26,264 26,264
XPEH Advances to customers 327,805 431,434 562,185  2,155830 6,639,156 10,974,663 - 21,091,073
GHEBERATER  Amounts due from immediate
RENBAARE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 98,702 2,296,052 1,696,147 582,330 - - - 4673231
MHHEELRER Available-for-sale financial assets - 678245 1163844 1465799 446,236 54,000 249,858 4,057,982
EfEE Other assets 61,457 101,363 43,045 6,324 257 - 660,878 873,324
1413210 3744813 3472316 4,210,957 7,085,649 11,028,663 937,404 31,892,612
af Liabilities
BTAE  BRHFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
HtBRERT central banks and other financial
institutions 2,115 - - - - - - 2,115
RERAR T8 #Z  Current, fixed, savings and other
REMER deposits of customers 14214444 4131830 6,338,588 3,002,916 101,949 - - 21,189,721
EERAR Trading liabilites - - - - - - 8150 28150
EREBARATE  Amounts due to immediate holding
RENEARNE company and fellow subsidiaries 296 38,338 - - - - - 38,634
ARk Other liabilties 184563 76444 52,684 95237 140 - 106674 515742
14,401,418 4,246,612 6,391,272 3,098,153 102,089 - 134,824 28,374,368
B(BH)/EEZE et (labilty)/asset gap (12988,208)  (502199) (2918,956) 1112804 6983560 11028663 802580 3518,244
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the

R(E) contractual maturity date (continued)
2015
1fiA 3fEA
JEE MR 1€ E
3@AR 1ER SR
Qver QOver Qver
AEEZ 1EAR tmonth 3 months Tyear  SELLE
Repayable Within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over Ei50i &%
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
BE Assets
BEREHSBAAL . Cashand balances with banks,
MRFETRER central banks and other financial
SRBETE institutions 966,107 241483 - = = - - 1,207,590
THERRORE Placements with banks, central
PRETRER banks and other financial
SREETE institutions = - = 239,502 = = - 239502
2525 Trade bills 731 4,448 431 = = = = 9,490
BEEMBAE Trading assets = = - = = - 68,281 68,281
RFEH Advances to customers 410,564 953,608 725864 2,664,083 6,488,128 10,988,298 - 22,230,545
GHEBERATER  Amounts due from immediate
RANBARFE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 76,734 5,051,591 895,133 322,316 - - - 6345774
MHHELRER Available-for-sale financial assets - 34,99 175,687 159,668 913,245 84,099 179,028 1,854,721
HthAE Other assets 99,962 31713 2,570 1,012 2,144 - 706514 849,975
1,554,098 6,631,837 1803565 3,386,641 7403517 11,072,397 953,823 32,805,878
af Liabilities
H7RE PRFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
A RBERS central banks and other financial
institutions 605 - - - - - - 605
REAR EH HE  Current, fixed, savings and other
REMER deposits of customers 13.117,719 5807416 5182118 4,231,031 47625 - - 28,385,909
BREETE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 397915 - - - 397915
EERAG Trading liabiities - - - - - - 00T 107775
ENEBERATE  Amounts due to immediate holding
RENBARRNE company and fellow subsidiaries 842 7710 - = = = = 8,552
ARt Other liabilties 213,130 49,638 2876 104,324 - - 105675 495,643
13,332,296 5,864,764 520499 4733210 47,625 - 213450 29,396,399
F(BE)/EEEE  Net (iability)/asset gap (11778.198) 767073 (3401,429) (1346,629) 7355892 11072397 740373 3409479
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25 Bt E bR EIE () 25 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) REBELEMREE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) XBEHIHERTREZEERE (ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
TRINTAITRBREAMEITES The cash flows payable by the Bank for the non-derivative
MEEREREMFE - RE4 M financial liabilities including interest payable that will be
HEMINMESRE - RS settled by remaining contractual maturities at the reporting
FENAH ERARBLSRE AK date are presented in the following table. The amounts
B - BHETESREBENENT disclosed are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
BRAHLENETHBEMIIR - flows. Interest payable in respect of term non-derivative

financial liabilities is reported based on contractual interest
payment date.

2016
1A 3R
WEB  WER 1EE
3EAR 1#r E5ER

Over Over Over
MEEX  1EAA  1month  3months Tyear  SEBE
Repayable ~ Within  butwithin ~ but within ~ but within Over BHH ag
ondemand  1month  3months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
HreeRes Non-derivative financial
liabilities
H7FZ PRFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
A RBERD central banks and other financial
institutions 2,115 - - - - - - 2,115
ZRAR 4 BER Current, fixed, savings and other
Bt deposits of customers 14,214,444 4,142,606 6,361,284 3,029,647 102,537 - - 21,850,518
EfEBERAARAZ Anounts due to immediate holding
WEAFRE company and fellow subsidiaries 296 38,356 - = = = = 38,652
Hih B Other liabilities 184,563 67,093 38,874 85,288 - - 106,674 482,492
14,401,418 4,248,055 6,400,158 3,114,935 102,537 - 106,674 28,373,777
KT B AL Unrecognised loan commitments 1,897,003 552,314 7210 208,001 322,311 29,490 - 3,226,389
BBERREMEEE  Financial quarantees and other
O ERAEL credit related contingent
liabilities 176 16,088 60,969 117,080 29,428 2,000 - 225,141
1,897,179 568,402 278,239 325,081 351,739 31,490 - 3452130
fiETARERE Derivative cash flows
REELE TSR Derivative financial instruments
I8 settled on net basis - 330 485 2,447 5,068 - - 8,330
ReEEE 7748 Derivative financial instruments
I8 settled on a gross basis
- @i - total outflow - 664,680 247,836 801,784 448,283 - - 2,162,583
- BRA - total inflow - (661,116)  (247,876)  (801,828)  (448,283) - - (2,159,103)
Fiit/ (RA) Net outflow(inflow) = 3,564 (40) (a4) - - - 3,480
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(b) ABELEREE ()

25 Financial risk management (continued)

(i) KESNIMERFTRZBEESRE

(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(&) (continued)
2015
1A 3R
MR JER 1 E
AR 167 B5%ER
QOver Qver QOver
BEEx 1EAR tmonth  3months Tyear  SENE
Repayable Within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over £ g
ondemand ~ Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
Hitemes Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BTAZ  HRHTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
EtsRlEES central banks and other financial
institutions 605 - - - - - - 605
REAR EH HE  Current, fixed, savings and other
REMER deposits of customers 13,117,719 5823348 5219593 4,277,614 47,641 - - 28485915
BRTERE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 397915 - - - 397915
EREBARATR  Amounts due to immediate holding
RAZNEARFE company and fellow subsidiaries 842 7,710 = = = - = 8,552
Ehag Other liabilties 249,007 446 - 85,150 = - 105675 440278
13,368,173 5831504 5219593 4,760,679 47 641 - 105,675 29,333,265
REAETHKE Unrecognised loan commitments 1933324 489,312 57,530 385,701 442,202 8,461 - 3,316,530
BRERREREEE  Financial quarantees and other
LR credit related contingent
liabilities 4,908 45,573 42,259 108,869 4577 2,000 - 245,186
1,938,232 534,885 99,789 494,570 483,779 10,461 - 3,561,716
fTETERETE Derivative cash flows
BFREETE Derivative financial instruments
$RIE settled on net basis - 3N 223 1,112 4,448 - - 6,154
BEREETE Derivative financial instruments
$RTA settled on a gross basis
o il - total outflow - 1376069 2751463 2,370,939 112,034 - - 6,610,505
- #FA - total inflow - (1,358,405 (2,743,017) (2,371,352)  (111,942) - - (6,584,716)
Fitt/ (RA) Net outflow/(inflow) - 17664 8,446 (413) 9 = - 25789
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market
prices of on- and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices
and the resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the
Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instrument held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for
the management of market risks and trading authorities. The
ALMCO has been delegated the responsibility of controlling
and monitoring market risk including regular review of the risk
exposures and the risk management framework such as the
established limits and stop-losses. The limits are set by ALMCO
and reviewed on a periodic basis with reference to market
conditions, with any material changes requiring a review by the
Board of Directors. It is the Bank’s policy that no limit should be
exceeded.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Bank’s interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the repricing of
interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to positions from non-interest bearing liabilities
including shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Interest rate
risk is managed by the Financial Management Department
("FMD") within limits approved by the Board. The Bank also
uses interest rate swaps and other derivatives to manage
interest rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement quarterly to monitor and limit its interest rate
risk exposure. PVBP is a technigue involving the calculation
of the change in present value of a financial instrument or a
portfolio of instruments due to a change of one basis point
in interest rates. It also provides a quick tool to evaluate the
impact on profit and loss due to a basis point movement in
interest rates.
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

()

Interest rate risk management (continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Interest rate sensitivity set out below is for risk management
reported to ALMCO only in simplified scenario, where
demand and saving deposits remain in the level as they
currently are and mortgage loans are serviced until their
original maturity. Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before
tax resulting from the change in interest rates may differ
from the result of the sensitivity analysis. The effect on
interest-bearing financial instruments and interest rate swaps
has been included in this calculation.

2016 2015
EF10EZ, Increase in 10 basis points 3,616 4,057
TRE10E 2, Decrease in 10 basis points (3,616) (4,057)

BREUEMNERERRIZREESA
& BRERESMERKFRE
TEBERKAE - BEENER

4
PHEERBEEEZESEE -

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by ALMCO.
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25 i ERMER 2
(0 TEEBEEE)

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

(i) AZEBREEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
TRETNBEBFEEERAE The following tables indicate the expected next repricing

ZHEATRNEELR - date for the assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

2016
3EANL 1E0E
B15R {B5%F &
Over Over %8
3fAR 3 months 1 year SEMNE Non-
Within ~ but within  but within Over interest 8%
3 months 1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERBTRE Cash and balances with banks,
RRFTRELM central banks and other financial
SREENE institutions 481,057 - - - 677,994 1,159,051
B5ZK Trade bills 11,687 - - - - 11,687
BERBEE Trading assets - - - - 26,264 26,264
RFEFREMEE Advances to customers and
other accounts 19,541,217 500,295 928,006 122,782 216,476 21,308,776
FREBZRARRAZ  Amounts due from immediate
MEARE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 4,016,200 561,958 - - 95,073 4,673,231
EHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 2,035,133 1,465,799 307,192 - 249,858 4,057,982
EtEE Others - - - - 655,621 655,621
BEE Total assets 26,085,294 2,528,052 1,235,198 122,782 1,921,286 31,892,612
af Liabilities
BARE  PREFTR Deposits and balances of banks,
Hi e RilETx central banks and other financial
institutions - - - - 2,115 2,115
BPER T8 f#E Current, fixed, savings and other
REMFR deposits of customers 22,652,817 3,002,916 101,949 - 2,032,045 27,789,727
EERRER Trading liabilities - - - = 28,150 28,150
EREBLEATRAZ  Amounts due to immediate holding
WEARZE company and fellow subsidiaries 38,320 - - - 314 38,634
EtaRE Others - - - - 515,742 515,742
BEfE Total liabilities 22,691,137 3,002,916 101,949 - 2,578,366 28,374,368
HEGRELE Interest rate sensitivity gap 3394,157  (474,864) 1133249 122,782  (657,080) 3,518,244
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miEAREE(E)
(i) FREBEREE)

25 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk management (continued)

2015
3fEALE 10 E
B1ER B5ER
QOver Over %8
AR 3 months 1 year SEN £ Non-
Within -~ but within ~ but within Over interest o]
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
EE Assets
BeREHBTRE R Cash and balances with banks,
FAREMEREBTE  central banks and other
financial institutions 512,585 - - - 695,005 1,207,590
THREREIRE AR Placements with banks, central
BOREMEREETE  banks and other financial
institutions - 239,502 - - - 239,502
8555 Trade bills 9,490 - - - - 9,490
BEERREE Trading assets - - - - 68,281 68,281
RFERREMER Advances to customers and
other accounts 20,673,870 473,694 992,517 99,287 134,638 22,374,006
FHEBERARARRZ Amounts due from immediate
WEAGIHE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 5,944,842 321,734 - - 79,198 6,345,774
THhEESHEAE Available-for-sale financial assets 713,022 159,668 770,303 32,700 179,028 1,854,721
EtEE Others - - - - 706,514 706,514
BEE Total assets 27,853,809 1,194,598 1,762,820 131,987 1,862,664 32,805,878
=L Liabilities
RITAE  PRFETREML  Deposits and balances of banks,
SHEREN central banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 605 605
REAR FH - BER  Current, fixed, savings and other
HiER deposits of customers 22,243,846 4,241,890 48,011 - 1,852,162 28,385,909
BETERE Certificates of deposits issued - 397,915 - - = 397,915
EER#AR Trading liabilities - - - - 107,775 107,775
EREBERARRRAZ Amounts due to immediate
WEAGIE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 7,290 - - - 1,262 8,552
EtEE Others - - - - 495,643 495,643
-1 Total liabilties 22,251,136 4,639,805 48,011 - 2457447 29396399
FEGREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 5,602,673  (3,445,207) 1,714,809 131,987 (594,783) 3,409,479
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25 Bt E bR EIE () 25 Financial risk management (continued)
() MEEKREIE () (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) FZEBEEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
TRBERKFEE 7 BBFIER : The following table indicates the effective interest rates for
the year:
2016 2015
TFHAFRERTTR 2 ~ P RIRTT Placement with banks, central banks
REAM S BhE IR and other financial institutions 1.09% 1.66%
BOEBEREFPER Trade bills and advances to customers 3.01% 3.08%
STREE Financial assets 1.81% 3.01%
IR1TRIZE  PRIRITNEM SR Deposits and balances of banks, central
HRETF R banks and other financial institutions 0.63% 2.57%
BEPER Deposits from customers 0.71% 1.05%
(ii) E¥EREE (ii) Currency risk management
RITHINERBEBINEES B The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign
HIRITET - FIBINEREAREERL exchange dealing, commercial banking operations. All
EECI T HMEIEE o foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury

Department within limits approved by the Board of Directors.

HRAITTATHEEREGEL AR The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
P BENETLAEE ME=1& foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank's assets and
EHE  ALESETRANT liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong
GHEEXREERR - L TARRE dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to each
A2z @bk other. The exposure at the reporting date was as follows:
2016
P B E Hit a5t
MOP HKD usD Others Total
REE Total assets 38.3% 51.9% 4.3% 5.5% 100%
waE Total liabilities 38.4% 49.8% 5.9% 5.9% 100%
R Net position (0.1)% 2.1% (1.6)% (0.4)% =
2015
RPTHE B e H CEl
MOP HKD usD Others Total
WA E Total assets 31.6% 51.8% 10.2% 6.4% 100%
FEy=L Total liabilities 35.2% 45.6% 8.0% 11.2% 100%
ek} Net position (3.6)% 6.2% 2.2% (4.8)% -
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25 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Operational risk management

(e)

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a longstanding culture of
high integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of
the Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account
by operational management committees chaired by senior
executives. Regular reviews are performed by the committees
to ensure proper functioning of internal controls and to identify
improvement opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank's
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls. This department reports to the
Supervisory Council to ensure the framework is managed with
high standards.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the Bank’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM
requirements and the HKMA requirements on group basis for its
immediate holding company, the Bank’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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25 Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. The amount of minimum
capital requirements held for credit, market and operational risks
is calculated in accordance with the Basel Il requirements under
AMCM and HKMA regulations.

Capital is allocated to the various activities of the Bank depending
on the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject
to the capital requirements of the AMCM and the HKMA for
their regulatory supervision purposes. The Bank has complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 and are well above the
minimum required ratio set by the AMCM and HKMA.

26 Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.
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26 Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

(iii) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable market data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all
other financial instruments that are not traded in the active markets,
the Bank determines fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value of expected future cash flows
and discounted cash flow models based on “no-arbitrage” principles,
standard option pricing models across the industry for vanilla
derivative products. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive
at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.
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26 Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market
data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is high.
However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of one
or more significant market inputs that are not observable. The fair
value derived is more judgemental. “Not observable” does not mean
there is absolutely no market data available but there is little or no
current market data available from which to determine the level at
which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur. Examples of
observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and forward rates,
benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces for commonly
traded option products. Examples of unobservable inputs include
volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the
need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces
the valuation uncertainty associated with determination of fair values.
The availability varies depending on the products and markets and is
prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in
the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market.

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility
for the determination of fair values lies with FMD. FMD establishes
procedures governing valuation, and is responsible for ensuring that
these comply with all relevant accounting standards.



26 2EEE®) 26 Fair values (continued)

BRAFEEIEZEBMIE(E) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
TREAFEBEEZRNGBHTIEZDERE The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value
AMRBEBARTEEHNECERMIA - at the reporting date according to the level in the fair value hierarchy

into which they are categorised.

2016
Recurring fair value F1ER F22E4 EIZH 4%t
REMEALEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
EERBREE Trading assets
—EEMBITELR T A - Positive fair values of derivative
ZIEAFEE financial instruments held
for trading - 26,264 - 26,264
AIEHE S REE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BFES — Treasury bills - 2,883,211 - 2,883,211
—HMEBBESH — Other debt securities 815,189 109,724 = 924,913
— FHiRE — Listed equity securities 35,281 9,303 - 44,584
—JFLEmKRE — Unlisted equity securities = = 205,274 205,274
850,470 3,002,238 205,274 4,057,982
=L Liabilities
EEREARE Trading liabilities
—EERBITESMI A - Negative fair values of
ZBRNFEE derivative financial
instruments held for trading - 28,150 - 28,150
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26 2 ¥ EE2) 26 Fair values (continued)

BAVEEIRZEMIAE)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

2015
Recurring fair value F1ER F2ER FEIER A5
BREMAFEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BEERBEE Trading assets
—BEEASITESH — Positive fair values of derivative
TAZERFEE financial instruments held
for trading = 68,281 - 68,281
AtHESmEE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BES — Treasury bills - 412,977 = 412,977
—H AR RS — Other debt securities 1,011,516 251,200 - 1,262,716
— EmRE — Listed equity securities 35,411 8,904 = 44,315
—FLEmERE — Unlisted equity securities - - 134,713 134,713
1,046,927 673,081 134,713 1,854,721
afE Liabilities
BEERLBE Trading liabilities
—BEEASITESH - Negative fair values of
TRAZBRFEE derivative financial
instruments held for trading — 107,775 - 107,775

(i) B1EREF2ER2ER
RAEE ¢RI AERAFEENSE
TERME2ER 2B BELEAE
B o R1T 2 BER BN & HIR K fER M
BAFBESERZEIELES -
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(i) Transfers between Level 1 and 2
During the year, there were no transfers of financial instruments
between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Bank’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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26 Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

AHHESHEE - RS
Available for sale
financial assets — equity

2016 2015
BE Assets
1R18B&8 At 1 January 134,713 93,317
REEABRERZ Changes in fair value recognised in the
RNTEEED balance sheet 70,561 41,396
12431 B & At 31 December 205,274 134,713

EIEMZATFEEEREES

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

BEEER
TR BREE
fHEEN Significant &=
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
A EIE AR ISR A R AT IS AT A0 40% E50%
Available-for-sale unlisted Market-comparable Discount for lack 40% to 50%
equity securities approach of marketability

BITUMAERNBAE - FHEOD
ERFILLR - MEE AEE G AT
HEMFELMBREFS 2 AFEEBAGER
BREMBERBEEAR)  c R FEEMNE
FHREZMERBEAERHERBER
B o B2016%F 12 A318 » EH &
ETNENBERTEMG - B gk
= T35 M T 5% 8 = 18 0 5k
A ERIT B IR A W) o i B R R P EE
10,263,700(2015F 12 4318 : JBPI%
6,735,650) °

The Bank has estimated the fair value of available-for-sale
unlisted equity securities using the lower of the price/earning
ratios and enterprise value to earning before interest, and taxes
ratio adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount of
lack of marketability by 5% would have increased/decreased the
Bank’s investment revaluation reserve by MOP10,263,700 (2015:
MOP6,735,650).
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

27 Immediate holding and ultimate controlling
party
At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate holding
and ultimate controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Wing Hang
Bank Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in
Singapore respectively. These entities produce financial statements
available for public use.

28 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year's presentation.
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

A RREERZ TG ERETE - RAKAM®AE  The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are prepared
RMEREREY M EERIREES MESR - to comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial Information
issued by the Monetary Authority of Macao.

Q)BEEFREEBEZ2ELAZTELLE  (a)Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated

group
£H
Group

2016 2015
M12A31 A2 EARFT B L E Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 17.1% 16.8%
BEGAERERBENFEREEBFE637 The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top
SRt (BAT I ERARER)BAFTEE consolidated group are in accordance with the Monetary Authority
BEERREREN o of Singapore Notice to Banks No. 637 (Notice on Risk Based Capital

Adequacy Requirement) for Banks incorporated in Singapore.
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(b) EAEL 7 4H B 012 (b)Components of own funds
2016 2015
EXgEESE: Core capital:
BHE K Paid-up share capital 120,000 120,000
ETEEE RAERBEEZ Legal, statutory and other reserves created
EBe REMARD A by appropriation of retained profits
PR < B & 304,200 304,200
BRETT Profits brought forward 1,956,466 1,865,131
NEZERBER Current year eligible net profits 187,815 188,488
HEABEES A% Total core capital 2,568,481 2,477,819
WrTEEES: Supplementary capital:
HIESEH2HES Reserves on revaluation of own premises 51,610 51,610
—REHES General provision 213,696 225,295
HrEEEESHETE Total supplementary capital 265,306 276,905
Wwwme: Dedudion: DT
SHRIERE BB ERE Total own funds after deduction 2,833,787 2,754,724
MAEER 2 BEBECRERBNI S B The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds
RIS mMEIRBE012/9357 B4 MR AIG after deduction is in accordance with Notice No. 012/93-AMCM.
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(i) EXFZELE

M12A31BEARFT B LLE

(c) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital adequacy ratio
2016 2015
15.16%

Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 13.71%

BAFRUEXREZEREAMCRERRDE

o

011/201553 BB AIFTE

(i) THEERZERER

TISAREAZ EX
—FEER
— AR
—SNERR
~BRER

The calculation on the capital adequacy ratio is in accordance with
Notice No.011/2015-AMCM.

(ii) Market risk capital requirement
2016 2015

The market risk capital requirements for
— Interest rate risk - -
— Equity position risk - -
— Foreign exchange risk 3,325 2,376
— Commodity risk - -

HOHETH 35 2\ i 48 AR

Weighted market risk exposures 3,325 2,376

(d)EERE (d)Credit risk
(i) BRHEQE2EFERDIT (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
2016

2B

EFEX
(ZEAKL) HEEN 18 B R B BEHE
EFEN Overdue (BRIEF) £ =
k] loans and Impaired  Individually  Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over (individually impairment impairment
advances 3 months) determined) allowances allowances
JRFY Macau 19,480,892 9,824 10,233 3,575 7,229
&b Hong Kong 964,048 34 34 920 357
hE A China 414,734 - - - 153
HAth Other 242,894 - - - 91
21,102,568 9,858 10,267 3,665 7,830
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(d)EERB =) (d)Credit risk (continued)
(i) BRUWEBESBEZEFERST(E) (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
(continued)
2015
[BECE
BEFEXR
(ZEAUL) HEER (EhElDE R BERERE
EPER Overdue  (fEBI%F) R i
1mEs loans and Impaired Individually Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over (individually impairment impairment
advances 3 months) determined) allowances allowances
SRPT Macau 20,797,509 27,752 25,821 23,436 10,470
B Hong Kong 839,301 - = = 422
B A China 609,805 - = = 307
HAh Other 18,574 - - - 10
22,265,189 27,752 25,821 23,436 11,209

VA 038 5 28 2 2 AT TH IR B SR A 2 PR
WY EEMEBRREEK - —KRNE -
ERBER ERESYIFERARE
2 = EREFEBER

(i) LB B 2EHREDHN

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of
the borrowers after taking into account the transfer of risk. In
general, risk transfer applies when a loan is guaranteed by a party
situated in an area different from the counterparty.

(ii) Geographical analysis of debt securities

2016 2015
B BIR (B 2 4 (ERIVER =R
Individually Individually
R EE assessed REE assessed
Carrying impairment Carrying impairment
amount allowances amount allowances
BB Hong Kong 539,315 - 703,694 -
Ehgh A&  Rest of Asia-Pacific 3,115,802 = 771,166 =
EM Americas 75,568 - 76,170 =
At Other 77,439 - 124,663 -
3,808,124 - 1,675,693 -
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(d)EERBR ) (d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) RERESAZSHNEEHA L 2B E e (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
HREDZENEEREEEB R the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
D&

2016
1188 3f3R

P} RER  1ENE
3EAM 18R B3R

Over Over Over
MEB%  1EAA  1month 3 months Tyear  3ENE e
Repayable Within ~ but within ~ but within  but within Over  Indefinite fag
ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
Z5ZEREFET Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 329,222 433,935 569,280 2,156,504 3,696,816 13,917,003 - 21,102,760
BEREMRTRERE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 923,829 234818 - - - - 404 1,159,051
mEFBAR/HEF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
LREEREEZES  Government and/or AMCM - 579,851 1,035,650 1,267,710 - - - 2,883.211
BRLERE Certificates of deposit held - - - - 48,404 - - 48,404
EthE% Other securities - 98,394 128,194 198,089 364,862 86,970 249,858 1,126,367
ff Liabilities
RORAER Deposits and balances of banks
EheRBER and financial institutions 2,115 - - - - - = 2,115
RERERR Deposits from public sector
entities 989 - 1,037,163 - - - - 1,038,152
ERRIEEATFE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 296 38,338 - - - - - 38,634
FRTREEPFS Deposits from non-bank
customers 14,213,455 4,131,830 5,301,425 3,002,916 101,712 237 - 26,751,575
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AEBRCHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
(d)EERMK 2 (d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) REBEBEBZEES NN E B L 2 B9 E ek (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based
HREDZENEEREEEB R on the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
PWER(E) (continued)

2015

187 3f@A
HER BER  1ENE
AR 1R B3FR

QOver Over QOver
fEEX  1ERER  Tmonth 3 months Tyear 3L B9
Repayable Within ~ but within ~ but within ~ but within Over  Indefinite pek
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
BE Assets
ZHZRREFES Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 411,295 958,056 730,175 2,664,083 3,815,438 13,660,988 - 22,240,035
BEREMRTRERE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 966,107 241,483 - - - - - 1,207,590
BAFHAR/H8F  Securities issued by Macao SAR
LREEREEZES  Government and/or AMCM - 342,99 69,983 - - - - 412,977
BALENE Certificates of deposit held - - 29,118 159,668 48,765 = - 231551
EhES Other securities = - 76,586 - 685,065 263,514 179,028 1,204,193
8 Liabilities
FIRER Deposits and balances of banks
EheRBER and financial institutions 605 - = - = = = 605
RERERR Deposits from public sector
entities 1,720 - 112,377 199,755 - - - 913,852
ERRIEEATFE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 842 7,710 - - - - - 8,552
BEAGERE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 397915 - - - 397915
¥BTALZERT Deposits from non-bank
customers 13,115,999 5807416 4,469,741 4,031,276 47,604 21 - 27,472,057
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(e) FMEE R B

(e)Foreign exchange risk

2016
AR¥ HihE#
B P B#  Chinese E7T Other 43
MoP HK$ Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREERE Total net long positions - 49,864 1,872 — 1,442 53,178
R AR AR Total net short positions 36,907 - - 16,229 42 53,178
2015
AR HipEw
JRPT Bk Chinese e Other =
MOP HK$  Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREERE Total net long positions 748 - - 61,035 2,368 64,151
FEARAERR Total net short positions - 61,898 1,666 = 587 64,151
2016
AR®
pedd Chinese E3 43
HKS$ Renminbi us$ Total
BEEE Spot assets 16,547,834 714,078 1,363,450 18,625,362
NEBRE Spot liabilities 15,893,128 818,603 1,874,643 18,586,374
=HAE A Forward purchases 723,302 108,118 1,327,682 2,159,102
RHIEH Forward sales 1,328,144 1,721 832,718 2,162,583
MR R Net option positions = - - _
&/ (58)8F8 _ Netlong/(short) positions 49,864 1,872 (16,229) 35,507
2015
AR
B Chinese eI B
HK$ Renminbi us$ Total
NEEE Spot assets 17,013,668 1,086,361 3,358,315 21,458,344
REBE Spot liabilities 14,951,429 2,659,101 2,625,706 20,236,236
EHE A Forward purchases 239,566 2,625,685 2,383,239 5,248,490
REHAEH Forward sales 2,363,703 1,054,611 3,054,813 6,473,127
R RFE Net option positions - - - _
(5 )#F%  Netlong/(short) positions (61,898) (1,666) 61,035 (2,529)
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AEBRCHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
(f) REBVE £ R (f) Liquidity risk
2016 2015
FREHERE &S Average minimum weekly cash in hand 680,523 657,176
FEFHR e &% Average weekly cash in hand 941,927 901,738
FRFHEERBEE Average month-end specified liquid assets 10,703,705 10,422,549
2016 2015
% %
FAFHREREEENA Average month-end ratio of specified liquid
EXRE B E assets to total basic liabilities 36.3 34.8
—(EAFEERBESLLE Average one-month liquidity ratio 45.4 455
=EAFERSERLE Average three-months liquidity ratio 39.1 38.2
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(g)EEEER(BBERMEMER
R E 2 ZEK)
BEABRNA-ZE—A~"E+=-HA=+—H

EEME AMORTIZACOES E

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM)

BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2016

RPI%
MOP
BRE
WENRE
PROVISOES,
BEFHE

BEE ACTIVO ACTIVO BRUTO MENOS - VALIAS ACTIVO LIQUIDO
Re CAIXA 421,664,604 421,664,604
AMCMTFFR DEPOSITOS NA AMCM 480,453,451 480,453,451
e BRI VALORES A COBRAR 445,256,781 445,256,781
TR 2 HA {5 Pt DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NOUTRAS INSTITUICOES DE

EEE CREDITO NO TERRITORIO 14,076,070 14,076,070
TEOME 2 BA A5 Pt DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NO EXTERIOR

EEER 106,741,267 106,741,267
T iR OURO E PRATA
HitnghEE OUTROS VALORES
6= CREDITO CONCEDIDO 20,986,263,936 2,880,700  20,983,383,236
TEASR{E BB APLICACOES EM INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO

TERRITORIO 2,946,999,965 2,946,999,965

TESMbE KB 2B R DEPOSITOS COM PRE-AVISO E A PRAZO NO

EEER EXTERIOR 4,547,876,197 4,547,876,197
RE -« F5 KA ACCOES, OBRIGACOES E QUOTAS 998,375,920 998,375,920
HIEEERE APLICACOES DE RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
EBA DEVEDORES 717,898 717,898
Hig & OUTRAS APLICACOES 48,403,608 48,403,608
MEIRE PARTICIPACOES FINANCEIRAS 74,249,706 74,249,706
TEpE IMOVEIS 653,042,418 38,175,921 614,866,497
B3 EQUIPAMENTO 188,594,353 147,840,061 40,754,292
EXEE R CUSTOS PLURIENAIS
R e A DESPESAS DE INSTALACAO
R B E IMOBILIZACOES EM CURSO
HiEEEE OUTROS VALORES IMOBILIZADOS
AR EEESE CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 106,584,889 106,584,889
ok TOTAIS 32,019,301,063 188,896,682 31,830,404,381
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AEBRCHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPTET T2 - Batesh)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

()EEEBR(BERMAEMER
BB EZEERER) 2
BEEBRR=-Z—A~"E+=A=+—8H

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM) (continued)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2016 (continued)

(%)
P M
MOP
N Fok )
=L PASSIVO SUB-TOTAIS TOTAIS
EEGER N DEPOSITOS A ORDEM 14,135,364,572
BANTFR DEPOSITOS C/PRE-AVISO
TEHATF K DEPOSITOS A PRAZO 12,557,261,831
NHBETFR DEPOSITOS DE SECTOR PUBLICO 1,038,152,092 27,730,778,495
AHERAKEE S RECURSOS DE INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO
TERRITORIO 10,746
Hih N iEE & RECURSOS DE OUTRAS ENTIDADES LOCAIS
NEEFE FR EMPRESTIMOS EM MOEDAS EXTERNAS 40,502,136
BHER EMPRESTIMOS POR OBRIGACOES
EEESEREA CREDORES POR RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
EAZERRE CHEQUES E ORDENS A PAGAR 81,912,591
EEA CREDORES 75,253,185
XIEaE EXIGIBILIDADES DIVERSAS 75,821,475 273,500,133
AEYEES CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 299,267,715
FIERRER® PROVISOES PARA RISCOS DIVERSOS 8,614,060
[N CAPITAL 120,000,000
EEREE RESERVA LEGAL 120,000,000
B e # RESERVA ESTATUTARIA 184,200,000
Ehf#EE RESERVA DE REAVALIACAO 601,764,985
H b *OUTRAS RESERVAS 180,472,453  1,206,437,438
BEEHEE RESULTADOS TRANSITADOS DE EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES 1,956,466,394
AEEEER RESULTADO DO EXERCICIO 355,340,146  2,311,806,540
k] TOTAIS 31,830,404,381
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(Q)EEE/ER(BERMLAEEE (g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
B EZEERR) &) format established by the AMCM) (continued)
EEABRR-ZE—X<E+=-A=+—-H BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2016 (continued)
(%)

* MiEE At R EIRFI5180,472,453 * As Outras Reservas incluem uma reserva obrigatéria no

TH—RRBRERS - RITHACRM
TSRS YR 4R B S B IS SRR AT
REFBEERE  BEREEBTEKE
R (EE18/93 — AMCMSRBE ) FTRE
WEREKEN—RREAKRERS - BTE
B —SRSRZREKTEERSER
BEEFEZENSHE(CERELERER
PI#24,609,882 ) fE B EE 1 - &8
BEASEREBREANMIBRTERXRT
A [IRESREREEGEILBNE
A&l WERAESEITFEVHEREA
R ERE - A [BREEEN ] ER RS
BEREEHEFEN[FEEE | 2M
MAZIBE YR -

montante de 180,472,453 Patacas. Porque o Banco adopta as
Normas de Relato Financeiro de Macau na preparacao das suas
demonstracdes financeiras anuais, as perdas de imparidade com
base nas NRFM podem ser inferiores ao nivel minimo de provisdes
genéricas calculadas de acordo com o Aviso 18/93 da AMCM (o
nivel minimo). A referida reserva obrigatéria representa, pois, a
diferenca entre o nivel minimo e as perdas de imparidade nos
termos das NRFM (antes dos impostos diferidos de 24,609,882
Patacas). Este mesmo montante, inscrito na linha {Dotacdes
adicionais para provisdes conforme RJSF) da Conta de Lucros e
Perdas das contas resumidas, esta reconciliado entre o {Lucro
depois de impostos) e os {Resultados do ano) de acordo com
as regras da RJSF na Conta de exploragao das demonstracdes
financeiras auditadas anuais.

P
MOP
£

HER

RERER

R BR

KRR

1RE RIERA K

ERAMN

L ER

RIFTRES
HEEA
HEE

HitEER

CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

VALORES RECEBIDOS EM DEPOSITO
VALORES RECEBIDOS PARA COBRANCA
VALORES RECEBIDOS EM CAUCAO
GARANTIAS E AVALES PRESTADOS
CREDITOS ABERTOS
ACEITES EM CIRCULACAO
VALORES DADOS EM CAUCAO
COMPRAS A PRAZO
VENDAS A PRAZO
OUTRAS CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

MONTANTE

7,256,969,180
21,963,437
36,074,916,864
181,037,813
44,703,032
92,819,591

2,159,102,806
2,162,583,038
2,893,723,845
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AEBRCHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(hEFER(BERMEALBMEEFFT (h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with

HREZEEKR) standard format established by the AMCM)
—E-AFEELREE DEMONSTRACAO DE RESULTADOS DO EXERCICIO DE 2016
EXERE CONTA DE EXPLORACAO
P
MOP
-0 -}
&R Débito MONTANTE &% Crédito MONTANTE
BEEBRAR CUSTOS DE OPERACOES 212,160,763 BEESIE PROVEITOS DE 750,635,676
PASSIVAS OPERACOES ACTIVAS
AEEH CUSTOS COM PESSOAL RITARIS W= PROVEITOS DE SERVICOS 106,155,301
BANCARIOS
BER REMUNERACOES DOS 100,000 EfBiRTT PROVEITOS DE OUTRAS 53,703,536
ERehff ORGAOS DE GESTAO ¥ OPERACOES
E FISCALIZACAO BANCARIAS
BEMY REMUNERACOES DE 137,329,654 FEH K RENDIMENTOS DE 45,302,504
EMPREGADOS B W TITULOS DE CREDITO
E DE PARTICIPACOES
FINANCEIRAS
Bl 3=k ER ENCARGOS SOCIAIS 52,547,654 EMiRTTdRES OUTROS PROVEITOS 34,122,357
BANCARIOS
HiWAEER OUTROS CUSTOS 1,339,942 JEIEEEULEE  PROVEITOS INORGANICOS 75,558
COM O PESSOAL
F=—EEH ZHEE  FORNECIMENTOS DE 8,899,112
TERCEIROS
F=FIRME 24T SERVICOS DE TERCEIROS 51,247,095
HiRTE A OUTROS CUSTOS 72,625,971
BANCARIOS
THIE IMPOSTOS 934,483
JEIEHEMKEBA  CUSTOS INORGANICOS 692,700
ERN DOTACOES PARA 37,477,821
AMORTIZACOES
BRS 2B DOTACOES PARA 23,860,143
PROVISOES
& ZEF)E LUCRO DA EXPLORACAO 390,779,594
4azE TOTAIS 989,994,932 4% TOTAIS 989,994,932
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(hWEZXR(BERMLBMEERFT
BREZEBERKN) 2

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with
standard format established by the AMCM)

(continued)

BaEtER CONTA DE LUCROS E PERDAS
B
MOP
&5 -}
&R Débito MONTANTE E&7 Crédito MONTANTE
EEREX PREJUIZO DE b LUCRO DE EXPLORACAO 390,779,594
EXPLORACAO
BE2EX PERDAS RELATIVAS 4,296,063 & 7 FH LUCROS RELATIVOS 1,746,353
A EXERCICIOS A EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES ANTERIORES
FFRIE R PERDAS EXCEPCIONAIS R FHE LUCROS EXCEPCIONAIS
EENEZ DOTACOES PARA 46,249,801 {EAESZfFH PROVISOES UTILIZADAS 4,296,063
TRIER K IMPOSTOS SOBRE
LUCROS DO EXERCICIO
RiEEER DOTACOES ADICIONAIS BiESmER DOTACOES REDUCAO 9,064,000
VAR E G PARA PROVISOES VA 1R 2R PARA PROVISOES
NERE CONFORME RISF MmERE CONFORME RJSF
EELER(EH)  RESULTADO DO 355,340,146
EXERCICIO (SE
POSITIVO)
4a%E TOTAIS 405,886,010 #2%8 TOTAIS 405,886,010
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AEBRCHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

MEBER &
—g-XxE+t=A=+-8

Inventario De Participacoes Financeiras

EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2016

FREBRE =t IREEE Baokt
Tipo/Sector de actividade Nome Valor do balanco Valor percentual
P
MOP
B&ZE B — AZERBELE S5
Accoes/Quotas por sector de
actividade
RIT - R REMITHE BE=REBRERA 54,031,573 12.00%
Bancos, seguros e outros servicos ~ Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang, S.A.R.L.
B ASRERHERD 17,972,247 10.50%
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang-Vida, S.A.
B &f TOTAIS 72,003,820

RBEFSRBFEENES L TREZAS
Quadro a publicar ao abrigo do artigo 75°. do R.J.S.F.
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BB S ER LR

IFRS Comparisons

RITZEEMBHRERIZBRPVEFRITHRESE
25/20055% 1T BUE AR FT fE 10 2 CR P81 765 & 48
AIVREL - CRPIFMI SRS 2R REEFARL
HEBR ST ERBES AN - WITBUAREM B
R B B F 3R S 2E R M AR K © ARTTINB AL
B — DR R BEIPR B 75 R 5 YE Bl D IR E S A%
HISHRE - ERRAERCRPIMISIRE ALYk
(EIR B s 5 221 ) ¥ AR17220165F 12 A31H
IR BRAREEER LW EEAEE -

The Bank’s statutory financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Macau Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS"”) as set out
in Administrative Regulation no. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region. MFRS were constituted by the direct adoption of
certain International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") effective at
the time of enactment of the Administrative Regulation. The Bank also
prepares a separate set of audited financial statements in accordance
with IFRS. The directors consider that there is no significant difference
between the adopting of MFRS or IFRS on the Bank's financial position and
operating results for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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List of Branches

T 24155 Head Office 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

AEEDT ATBE B LEA 397D Ho Lan Un Branch 3D Avenida do Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida

AEmDIT == R85 Hong Kai Si Branch 85 Avenida Horta e Costa

BT B EBKE19-215% San Kiu Branch 19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

BLEST 515812 F 83255 C-F Hak Sa Van Branch 32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo

BT B KERIZLH 33858  Toi San Branch 338 Avenida de A.T. Barbosa

BB EHST S S E295AM T Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch 29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

WEST WEE N\EEEIER 1955 lao Hon Branch 195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

STRFE DT BT 75-795% Ho Pin San Kai Branch 75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

FOEDT FORKRELES2865# F  San Hau On Branch 286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C

RFEDT FIMAK B ¥309-3155% Fai Chi Kei Branch Avenida do Conselheiro Borja Nos. 309-315,
REEE S T B T DEE Mayfair Garden Bloco 5D R/C

KFTEF DT PR RN H356-3663 75 Flower City Branch 356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
MEXRE
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